
19.0598.06000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

04/24/2019

Amendment to: Engrossed SB 2211

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $0 $2,000,000 $0 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Senate Bill 2211 is relating to the determination of the ordinary high water mark; to sovereign lands, determining the 
ordinary high water mark; the ownership of mineral rights of land subject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams; to provide for application.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The 65th Legislative Assembly’s adoption of Senate Bill 2134 (SB 2134), codified as N.D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1, provided 
for the determination of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) for certain stretches of the Missouri River. The bill 
directs the North Dakota Industrial Commission (NDIC) to determine the delineation of the OHWM of the US Army 
Corp of Engineers (USACE) survey segments from the northern boundary of the Fort Berthold Indian reservation to 
the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 153 North, Range 102 West, McKenzie, Mountrail, and 
Williams Counties, North Dakota. 

On December 17, 2018, the Board of University and School Lands authorized the Commissioner to request 
proposals for analysis and GIS services for property related to the OHWM Study of the historical Missouri riverbed 
channel prepared by Wenck Associates, Inc. and adopted by NDIC on September 27, 2018 in Order No. 29129 to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles.

An engineering firm will be able to provide the Department with the necessary data to implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to state-issued 
oil and gas leases. Additionally, the Department will provide this information for all property impacted by N.D.C.C. 
ch. 61-33.1 so that this information is available to operators and the public.

Per the amended language modifying "inundated" to "subject to inundation", the Department cannot determine fiscal 
impact on revenues without additional information from the State Engineer. The funds in the Strategic Investment 
and Improvements Fund (SIIF), which includes the amounts generated from leasing the State's sovereign minerals, 
will likely be impacted if the State is required bonuses, rents and royalties to its lessees.



Per section 7, the additional timeframe for interested parties to bring litigation against the State will result in 
additional attorney fees.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

SB 2211 will authorize the Board of University and School Lands to hire a qualified engineering and surveying firm to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles. However, SB 
2211 does not provide an appropriation for the costs of contracting with a qualified engineering and surveying firm 
as the Board has been provided the authority to utilize SIIF funds per N.D.C.C. § 15-08.1-08 as "management of the 
property".

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Section 1 of SB 2211 authorizes the Board of University and School Lands to contract with a qualified engineering 
and surveying firm to analyze the final review findings and determine the acreage adjustments.

The cost of the survey is not to exceed $2.0 million. This cost is a fixed price encompassing all work and direct costs 
for completion of the Deliverables as outlines in Section IV of the request for proposal. Additional costs may need to 
be negotiated once a firm is selected for expenses such as legal and expert witness fees.

Name: Jodi Smith

Agency: Department of Trust Lands

Telephone: 701-328-2807

Date Prepared: 03/13/2019



19.0598.05000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

04/17/2019

Amendment to: SB 2211

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $0 $2,750,000 $0 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Senate Bill 2211 is relating to the determination of the ordinary high water mark; to sovereign lands, determining the 
ordinary high water mark; the ownership of mineral rights of land subject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams; to provide a contingent appropriation.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The 65th Legislative Assembly’s adoption of Senate Bill 2134 (SB 2134), codified as N.D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1, provided 
for the determination of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) for certain stretches of the Missouri River. The bill 
directs the North Dakota Industrial Commission (NDIC) to determine the delineation of the OHWM of the US Army 
Corp of Engineers (USACE) survey segments from the northern boundary of the Fort Berthold Indian reservation to 
the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 153 North, Range 102 West, McKenzie, Mountrail, and 
Williams Counties, North Dakota. 

On December 17, 2018, the Board of University and School Lands authorized the Commissioner to request 
proposals for analysis and GIS services for property related to the OHWM Study of the historical Missouri riverbed 
channel prepared by Wenck Associates, Inc. and adopted by NDIC on September 27, 2018 in Order No. 29129 to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles.

An engineering firm will be able to provide the Department with the necessary data to implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to state-issued 
oil and gas leases. Additionally, the Department will provide this information for all property impacted by N.D.C.C. 
ch. 61-33.1 so that this information is available to operators and the public.

Per the amended language modifying "inundated" to "subject to inundation", the Department cannot determine fiscal 
impact on revenues without additional information from the State Engineer. The funds in the Strategic Investment 
and Improvements Fund (SIIF), which includes the amounts generated from leasing the State's sovereign minerals, 
will likely be impacted if the State is required bonuses, rents and royalties to its lessees.



Per section 7, the additional timeframe for interested parties to bring litigation against the State will result in 
additional attorney fees.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

SB 2211 will authorize the Board of University and School Lands to hire a qualified engineering and surveying firm to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles. However, SB 
2211 does not provide an appropriation for the costs of contracting with a qualified engineering and surveying firm 
as the Board has been provided the authority to utilize SIIF funds per N.D.C.C. § 15-08.1-08 as "management of the 
property".

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Section 1 of SB 2211 authorizes the Board of University and School Lands to contract with a qualified engineering 
and surveying firm to analyze the final review findings and determine the acreage adjustments.

The cost of the survey is not to exceed $2.0 million. This cost is a fixed price encompassing all work and direct costs 
for completion of the Deliverables as outlines in Section IV of the request for proposal. Additional costs may need to 
be negotiated once a firm is selected for expenses such as legal and expert witness fees. 

Section 6 of SB 2211 requires $750,000 be appropriated to reimburse legal expenses as provided in subsection 2, 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021.

Name: Jodi Smith

Agency: Department of Trust Lands

Telephone: 701-328-2807

Date Prepared: 03/13/2019



19.0598.04000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

03/11/2019

Amendment to: SB 2211

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $0 $2,750,000 $0 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Senate Bill 2211 is relating to the ownership of mineral rights of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project 
dams.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The 65th Legislative Assembly’s adoption of Senate Bill 2134 (SB 2134), codified as N.D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1, provided 
for the determination of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) for certain stretches of the Missouri River. The bill 
directs the North Dakota Industrial Commission (NDIC) to determine the delineation of the OHWM of the US Army 
Corp of Engineers (USACE) survey segments from the northern boundary of the Fort Berthold Indian reservation to 
the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 153 North, Range 102 West, McKenzie, Mountrail, and 
Williams Counties, North Dakota. 

On December 17, 2018, the Board of University and School Lands authorized the Commissioner to request 
proposals for analysis and GIS services for property related to the OHWM Study of the historical Missouri riverbed 
channel prepared by Wenck Associates, Inc. and adopted by NDIC on September 27, 2018 in Order No. 29129 to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles.

An engineering firm will be able to provide the Department with the necessary data to implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to state-issued 
oil and gas leases. Additionally, the Department will provide this information for all property impacted by N.D.C.C. 
ch. 61-33.1 so that this information is available to operators and the public.

Per the amended language modifying "inundated" to "subject to inundation", the Department cannot determine fiscal 
impact on revenues without additional information from the State Engineer. The funds in the Strategic Investment 
and Improvements Fund (SIIF), which includes the amounts generated from leasing the State's sovereign minerals, 
will likely be impacted if the State is required bonuses, rents and royalties to its lessees.



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

SB 2211 will authorize the Board of University and School Lands to hire a qualified engineering and surveying firm to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles. However, SB 
2211 does not provide an appropriation for the costs of contracting with a qualified engineering and surveying firm 
as the Board has been provided the authority to utilize SIIF funds per N.D.C.C. § 15-08.1-08 as "management of the 
property".

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Section 1 of SB 2211 authorizes the Board of University and School Lands to contract with a qualified engineering 
and surveying firm to analyze the final review findings and determine the acreage adjustments.

The cost of the survey is not to exceed $2.0 million. This cost is a fixed price encompassing all work and direct costs 
for completion of the Deliverables as outlines in Section IV of the request for proposal. Additional costs may need to 
be negotiated once a firm is selected for expenses such as legal and expert witness fees. 

Section 6 of SB 2211 requires $750,000 be appropriated to reimburse legal expenses as provided in subsection 2, 
for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021.

Name: Jodi Smith

Agency: Department of Trust Lands

Telephone: 701-328-2807

Date Prepared: 03/13/2019



19.0598.03000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

02/08/2019

Amendment to: SB 2211

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $0 $2,500,000 $0 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Senate Bill 2211 is relating to the ownership of mineral rights of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project 
dams.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The 65th Legislative Assembly’s adoption of Senate Bill 2134 (SB 2134), codified as N.D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1, provided 
for the determination of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) for certain stretches of the Missouri River. The bill 
directs the North Dakota Industrial Commission (NDIC) to determine the delineation of the OHWM of the US Army 
Corp of Engineers (USACE) survey segments from the northern boundary of the Fort Berthold Indian reservation to 
the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 153 North, Range 102 West, McKenzie, Mountrail, and 
Williams Counties, North Dakota. 

On December 17, 2018, the Board of University and School Lands authorized the Commissioner to request 
proposals for analysis and GIS services for property related to the OHWM Study of the historical Missouri riverbed 
channel prepared by Wenck Associates, Inc. and adopted by NDIC on September 27, 2018 in Order No. 29129 to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles.

An engineering firm will be able to provide the Department with the necessary data to implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to state-issued 
oil and gas leases. Additionally, the Department will provide this information for all property impacted by N.D.C.C. 
ch. 61-33.1 so that this information is available to operators and the public.



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

SB 2211 will authorize the Board of University and School Lands to hire a qualified engineering and surveying firm to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles. However, SB 
2211 does not provide an appropriation for the costs of contracting with a qualified engineering and surveying firm 
as the Board has been provided the authority to utilize SIIF funds per N.D.C.C. § 15-08.1-08 as "management of the 
property".

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Section 1 of SB 2211 authorizes the Board of University and School Lands to contract with a qualified engineering 
and surveying firm to analyze the final review findings and determine the acreage adjustments.

The cost of the survey is not to exceed $2.5 million.

Name: Jodi Smith

Agency: Department of Trust Lands

Telephone: 701-328-2807

Date Prepared: 01/20/2019



19.0598.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/12/2019
Revised
Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2211

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $0 $2,500,000 $0 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Senate Bill 2211 is relating to the ownership of mineral rights of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project 
dams.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The 65th Legislative Assembly’s adoption of Senate Bill 2134 (SB 2134), codified as N.D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1, provided 
for the determination of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) for certain stretches of the Missouri River. The bill 
directs the North Dakota Industrial Commission (NDIC) to determine the delineation of the OHWM of the US Army 
Corp of Engineers (USACE) survey segments from the northern boundary of the Fort Berthold Indian reservation to 
the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 153 North, Range 102 West, McKenzie, Mountrail, and 
Williams Counties, North Dakota. 

On December 17, 2018, the Board of University and School Lands authorized the Commissioner to request 
proposals for analysis and GIS services for property related to the OHWM Study of the historical Missouri riverbed 
channel prepared by Wenck Associates, Inc. and adopted by NDIC on September 27, 2018 in Order No. 29129 to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles.

An engineering firm will be able to provide the Department with the necessary data to implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to state-issued 
oil and gas leases. Additionally, the Department will provide this information for all property impacted by N.D.C.C. 
ch. 61-33.1 so that this information is available to operators and the public.



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

SB 2211 will authorize the Board of University and School Lands to hire a qualified engineering and surveying firm to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles. However, SB 
2211 does not provide an appropriation for the costs of contracting with a qualified engineering and surveying firm 
as the Board has been provided the authority to utilize SIIF funds per N.D.C.C. § 15-08.1-08 as "management of the 
property".

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Section 1 of SB 2211 authorizes the Board of University and School Lands to contract with a qualified engineering 
and surveying firm to analyze the final review findings and determine the acreage adjustments.

The cost of the survey is not to exceed $2.5 million.

Name: Jodi Smith

Agency: Department of Trust Lands

Telephone: 701-328-2807

Date Prepared: 01/20/2019



19.0598.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/12/2019

Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2211

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $2,500,000 $0 $0 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Senate Bill 2211 is relating to the ownership of mineral rights of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project 
dams.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The 65th Legislative Assembly’s adoption of Senate Bill 2134 (SB 2134), codified as N.D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1, provided 
for the determination of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) for certain stretches of the Missouri River. The bill 
directs the North Dakota Industrial Commission (NDIC) to determine the delineation of the OHWM of the US Army 
Corp of Engineers (USACE) survey segments from the northern boundary of the Fort Berthold Indian reservation to 
the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 153 North, Range 102 West, McKenzie, Mountrail, and 
Williams Counties, North Dakota. 

On December 17, 2018, the Board of University and School Lands authorized the Commissioner to request 
proposals for analysis and GIS services for property related to the OHWM Study of the historical Missouri riverbed 
channel prepared by Wenck Associates, Inc. and adopted by NDIC on September 27, 2018 in Order No. 29129 to 
determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following area: the northern boundary of the Fort 
Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 
153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of approximately 83 river miles.

An engineering firm will be able to provide the Department with the necessary data to implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to state-issued 
oil and gas leases. Additionally, the Department will provide this information for all property impacted by N.D.C.C. 
ch. 61-33.1 so that this information is available to operators and the public.



3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

SB 2211 will authorize the Board of University and School Lands to spend Strategic Investment and Improvement 
Funds (SIIF) for the costs of a contractor to determine acreage above and below the OHWM within the following 
area: the northern boundary of the Fort Berthold Indian Reservation (approximately river mile 1482) to the southern 
border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 153 North, Range 102 West (just beyond river mile 1564), a distance of 
approximately 83 river miles.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Section 1 of SB 2211 authorizes the Board of University and School Lands to contract with a qualified engineering 
and surveying firm to analyze the final review findings and determine the acreage adjustments.

Total appropriation not to exceed $2,500,000.

Name: Jodi Smith

Agency: Department of Trust Lands

Telephone: 701-328-2807

Date Prepared: 01/20/2019
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the ownership of mineral rights of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri 
project dams. 
 

Minutes:                                                 5 attachments  

 
Chair Unruh: Opened the public hearing. 
 
Senator Brad Bekkedahl, District 1 (0:30-3:35) Introduced the bill, please see 
attachment #1.  Please see attachment #2 for proposed amendments.  
 
Jodie Smith, Commissioner and Secretary, Board of University and School Lands 
(4:40-14:30) Testified in favor, please see attachment #3.  
 
Ron Ness, North Dakota Petroleum Council (14:30-15:30) Testified in favor. We’ve got 
to do this right in order for people to be paid. The amendments passed out by the prime 
sponsor essentially just rearrange the order in which all this will take place to ensure that the 
2-year clock is restarted, if you recall from last session the 2-year clock basically gave people 
two years to litigate or not litigate. So, you have to get the payments right. We don’t want to 
pay the wrong parties, that’s where we’re at today until you do the exact determinations 
acreage by acreage.  
 
Craig Smith, Attorney, Crowley Fleck Law, North Dakota Petroleum Council (15:50-
16:28) please see attachments #4-5. I just want to bring the perspective of the North Dakota 
oil and gas operators, we concur, we need the acreage adjustments. We cannot do any 
refunds or payment of royalties or adjustment on our paybacks until that is done. It’s 
imperative that that project gets completed.   
 
No agency or opposing testimony.  
 
Chair Unruh: Closed the public hearing.  
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A bill relating to the ownership of mineral rights of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri 
project dams. 
 

Minutes:                                                 1 attachment 

 
Chair Unruh: Opened committee action.  
Chair Unruh: This was brought to us by Senator Bekkedahl. It addresses a few things, 
mostly a deadline to some action that we took last session regarding ownership of the 
minerals under Lake Sakakawea. For those of us on the committee last session, we know 
how detailed that issue was. We also have an amendment (Please see attachment #1) that 
was brought to us, that should be adopted before we make a motion on the bill. Some 
permissive language for the Board of University and School Lands.  
 
Senator Schaible: Was this from Craig Smith, was it drafted in original form?  
 
Chair Unruh: It’s not in legislative council form, but I trust that it makes sense. 
 
Senator Schaible: Do we need to get that done? 
 
Chair Unruh: No. 
 
Senator Schaible: I move to adopt the amendment. 
Senator Cook: I second.  
 
A voice vote was taken.  
Motion carries. 
 
Senator Roers: I move a Do Pass As Amended.  
Senator Schaible: I second. 
  
A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion carries 6-0-0. 
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Chair Unruh will carry. 
 
Chair Unruh: Closed the committee action.  
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Committee 

February 7, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2211 

Page 1, line 1, after "to" insert "create and enact a new subsection to section 61-33.1-03 of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to the determination of the ordinary high water 
mark; and to" 

Page 1, after line 4, insert: 

"SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 61-33.1-03 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Upon adoption of the final review findings by the industrial commission, the 
board of university and school lands may contract with a qualified 
engineering and surveying firm to analyze the final review findings and 
determine the acreage on a quarter-quarter basis or government lot basis 
above and below the ordinary high water mark as delineated by the final 
review findings of the industrial commission. The acreage determination is 
final upon approval by the board." 

Page 1, line 8, overstrike "final review findings" and insert immediately thereafter "acreage 
determination" 

Page 1, line 8, overstrike "industrial" 

Page 1, line 9, overstrike "commission" and insert immediately thereafter "board of university 
and school lands" 

Page 1, line 20, overstrike "final review findings" and insert immediately thereafter "acreage 
determination" 

Page 1, line 20, overstrike "industrial commission" and insert immediately thereafter "board of 
university and school lands" 

Page 1, line 21, remove "may contract with a qualified" 

Page 1, remove lines 22 through 24 

Page 2, remove line 1 

Page 2, line 2, remove "board. After approving the acreage determination, the board" 

Renumber accordingly 
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SB 2211: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Sen. Unruh, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2211 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "to" insert "create and enact a new subsection to section 61-33.1-03 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the determination of the ordinary high 
water mark; and to" 

Page 1, after line 4, insert: 

"SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 61-33.1-03 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Upon adoption of the final review findings by the industrial commission, 
the board of university and school lands may contract with a qualified 
engineering and surveying firm to analyze the final review findings and 
determine the acreage on a quarter-quarter basis or government lot basis 
above and below the ordinary high water mark as delineated by the final 
review findings of the industrial commission. The acreage determination 
is final upon approval by the board." 

Page 1, line 8, overstrike "final review findings" and insert immediately thereafter "acreage 
determination" 

Page 1, line 8, overstrike "industrial" 

Page 1, line 9, overstrike "commission" and insert immediately thereafter "board of university 
and school lands" 

Page 1, line 20, overstrike "final review findings" and insert immediately thereafter "acreage 
determination" 

Page 1, line 20, overstrike "industrial commission" and insert immediately thereafter "board 
of university and school lands" 

Page 1, line 21, remove "may contract with a qualified" 

Page 1, remove lines 22 through 24 

Page 2, remove line 1 

Page 2, line 2, remove "board. After approving the acreage determination, the board" 

Renumber accordingly 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk, Kathleen Davis  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the determination of the ordinary high water mark; to the ownership of mineral 
rights of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri Basin Project dams. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1,2,3 

 
Chairman Porter:  opened the hearing on SB 2211. 
 
Sen. Brad Bekkedahl, presented Attachment 1 and 2. 
 
Jodi Smith, ND Trust Lands presented Attachment 3. 
 
Rep. Lefor: Do you feel this bill gives you all the tools you need to complete this task? 
 
21:00 
 
Jodi Smith: yes we do. 
 
Rep. Keiser: When was this issue recognized by the department or anyone within State 
government? 
 
Jodi Smith:  I can only speak to the time period since I came to this position. The issue was raised 
to the ND Industrial Commission I believe in April. They had a public comment period at the end of 
June. I provided them a similar testimony at that time.  
 
Rep. Keiser:  It’s obvious what the intent was of the Legislation passed. We felt there was a taking 
that was inappropriate, those be returned to the rightful owner. It was our assumption; we didn’t put 
a price tag on the Wenck study.  It was our assumption when they got done, you would be able to 
make the decision. Not come back and say we need 2 more years and $2.5 million. Did Wenck fail? 
Did we not write a correct RFP?  Why didn’t they do this? 
 
Jodi Smith: I don’t think I can adequately address that. I think that should be addressed to the ND 
Industrial Commission only because it wasn’t under our purview to do this. 
 
Rep. Keiser: Are you saying all property needs to go through this? 
 
Jodi Smith: We would prefer that every property go through this. 
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Rep. Keiser:  that’s not my question. 
 
Jodi Smith:  yes I believe every property needs to go through this. 
 
Rep. Keiser: We thought by now this would be done. Shouldn’t we now have an amendment with 
interest to these mineral rights owners at the interest rate earned on those reserved dollars or 
maximum rate the Bank of ND receives in terms of interest earnings. 
 
Jodi Smith:  That’s completely up to you to make that determination. At this time we will issue 
checks to the operators.  It will be up to the operators to issue checks to mineral owners.  
 
Rep. Keiser:  Not you, we could put into the bill you will, in addition to returning it to the operators, 
you will pay these mineral right owners the money they have not been able to utilize the last 2 years 
and now for 2 more years.  
 
Jodi Smith: We can provide you with that interest rate we have garnered from the Bank of ND.  I 
can email you later with that information. 
 
Rep. Devlin:  When you were doing your budget did you request additional people so this could be 
done in one year not two? 
 
Jodi Smith: We did have that conversation and it takes us about 2 years to train someone in that 
division how to do this work. The only other thing would be to hire outside consultation to assist.  
 
Rep. Keiser: Help us identify who knew what when. This is session oversight. I can’t believe you’re 
standing here and telling us now we need a second study when it was clear what the intention was. 
I want to know who made what decisions when, and did it recognize that we needed this 
information and add it to the Wenck study.  I’m talking that we need to do a 2nd study to determine. 
Somebody knew about this in advance. I can’t believe the light turned on in April. 
 
Jodi Smith:  For our department the light went on in April. We weren’t part of the Wenck study and 
I think very intentionally there was a “Chinese wall” created between the ND Industrial Commission 
and the Dept. of Trust Lands. We weren’t involved in the procurement of the first that did this. We 
didn’t understand this wouldn’t be part of that information and in April 17, 2018, we realized we had 
an issue.  At that time, we brought our concerns forward through the public comment period. Didn’t 
understand it wasn’t under our purview. We didn’t understand that this wasn’t something they could 
complete under SB2134 from last session. We made an assumption it could be completed by them.  
When the order was issued on September 27, 2017  that was when we knew we would not be a 
part of it and ask for an extension at that time. Understanding if that work had not already been 
done there was going to be a delay with us being able to release the funds because we didn’t have 
those acreage adjustments we needed to do our portion. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  You can say with certainty, you did not know it and it assured in April. What about 
anyone else in your department? This is one of those should have knowns. We have a major 
problem that’s costing us $2.5 million.  Can you tell me no one else in your department knew? 
 
Jodi Smith: I can tell you no one was talked to in our department.  When the final review was 
issued we knew we were going to have a problem.  In our process, we did as the ND Petroleum 
Council, in particular Craig Smith, expert in ordinary high water mark and Lynn Helms in to help us 
write the RFP. Our hope and goal was that we would not come into another one of these issues 
where we weren’t getting the information.  
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Chairman Porter: Inside of Wenck and drawing the line, there are full quarters. Do those need 
review to pay out?  They shouldn’t need any additional review.   
 
31:00 
 
Jodi Smith: I think if we can go through the survey and clearly identify those, what we have right 
now, that Wenck line, when they drop it on top of our lines, is actually dots, not a line. So if you go 
on Dept. of Mineral Resources, you can pull up that survey, there’s little dots. Sometime they abut 
right next to each other and we need to know very specifically. If there’s a clear way above or 
below, we do have a few circumstances like that I’m aware of. Those are a little easier to go 
through and start releasing funds. We just got a ruling on the Sorum case. There was an injunction 
on us releasing any funds. If there’s an appeal to that ruling, there’s potential that we will be in an 
injunction to release any of these funds.  
 
Ron Ness, ND Petroleum Council:  presented Attachments 4 and 5 for Craig Smith, attorney for 
Crowley Fleck who was out ill.   
 
36:30 
 
Rep. Lefor:  I understand the Sorum case, the State steals their minerals, the Judge rules it’s past 
the statute of limitations. So we protect ourselves with a statute from the mineral owners so we can 
justify or not justify. Has there been any discussion among your group about having legislature 
revise the statute in terms of statute of limitations to get these dollars to the rightful owners? 
 
Ron Ness:  I think this resets the clock on payment and the ability for individual landowners to 
appeal.  
 
Rep. Lefor: are you also including those mineral owners where the judge made the ruling that they 
can’t get their money back and the Sorum case, are you referring to those as well? 
 
Ron Ness: I think the judge made the ruling regarding the leases which is the individuals or 
operators who leased the minerals, but they could not release that mineral.  That is going to be 
appealed in my opinion.  The Judge had the wrong lease in hand. That State lease is very clear that 
it says you refund it if you found that we don’t own these minerals.  
 
Rep. Keiser I’ve lost confidence in Legislative intent having much impact.  If you listen to the 
commissioner she wants to complete the study first.  Some of these areas are not in question.  
There’s got to be penalty. These are dollars that somebody else owns. We’re reaping the benefit of 
interest for potentially 4 years and that’s not fair.  
 
Ron Ness: that’s up to you.  The Dept. of Trust Lands or Industrial Commission may have that.  
The Sorum Nelson lawsuit is also substantially trying to delay payment. 
 
Chairman Porter: further support?  Opposition?   
 
Rep. Keiser: Anyone from the Industrial Commission here? 
 
Arlene Fine, Industrial Commission 
 
Rep. Keiser: who knew what when and why wasn’t this addressed in the RFP project so we didn’t 
have a further delay. 
 
42:20 
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Ms. Fine:  Mr. Helms was leading drive on drafting the RFP. I was in on the discussion. We thought 
we had covered what the intent of the legislation was. As the process went through and the 
information came forward, then in April we were told it wasn’t sufficient. At that time the work had 
already been done. 
 
Chairman Porter: If we as a state thought we had the property verbiage for the RFP and the 
contractor didn’t provide the information, was there a failure inside of the contract that we didn’t get 
what we paid for, or was there a failure that it wasn’t written property to get what we wanted?  
 
Ms. Fine:  I don’t think I can answer that. What we incorporated into the RFP was language that 
was in the law. That was what was brought forward in the proposals, selected the proposal and 
entered into the contract. Whether there’s some interpretation I can’t answer that.  
 
Troy Seibold, Chief Deputy Attorney General: I was here in case there were questions about the 
Sorum case which is ongoing and a direct constitutional challenge to SB 2134 from the 2017 
session.  
 
Chairman Porter:  Rep Lefor had a question he asked Mr. Ness in regards to the Judge’s ruling 
and the statute of limitations of that ruling.  
 
Troy Seibold:  Essentially what we had is the plaintiffs’ in Sorum have challenged the 
constitutionality of SB 2134, file suit in District Court in Fargo, in front of Judge Erbe. They are 
saying it’s a gift clause problem, there’s a public trust doctrine problem. They’ve alleged the state 
owns all the minerals under the lake and by giving them away we are violating the gift clause. The 
state has defended that statute. The defendants are the Industrial Commission, the Land Board, the 
Governor and Attorney General. The Judge has recently ruled in the last week, essentially the state 
won.  The Judge upheld the constitutionality of the statute for the most part. There’s one piece he 
did declare unconstitutional.  The Judge declared in that case the state does not own everything 
under the lake, it’s not a gift. The Judge, we felt was in line with the state. In his order he went into 
the analysis about the statute of limitations. Where he went and got there was really in the 
retroactivity of the statute.  HB 2134 is retroactive in nature to 2006. As he analyzed the 
constitutionality he went down the path of looking statute of limitations.  We are reviewing that, and 
have some issues with it. We think the Judge’s analysis is maybe flawed. We will be contacting our 
clients, the Industrial Commission, the Land Board, the governor, the attorney general about what 
path we take forward. That might involve asking Judge Erbe to clarify his decision. We may be at 
that point just appealing. Those are things the clients will have to make decisions.  I would echo Mr. 
Ness comment that the parties will appeal. At the end of the day nothing is unconstitutional until 4 of 
our Supreme Court justices say it is. At this point it’s highly likely this will end up at the Supreme 
Court anyway. Imbedded in that lawsuit is an injunction prohibiting the Land Department from 
disbursing funds from the effective date of the act which it had an emergency clause so it was April 
2017 and prior. So the Land Board is prohibited from disbursing funds from April 2017 and prior to 
that date due to that order. That’s where the case sits. The Judge said because these individuals 
only had a 3-year statute of limitations, they only had up until 3 years ago to file a lawsuit to try and 
recover their money from the State. Anything prior to that date would be a gift. It was the 
retroactivity that the Judge declared unconstitutional.      
 
Rep. Lefor:  we can’t change anything constitutional. Is there anything we can add to this bill to 
help the mineral owners in terms of statute of limitations?   It’s a shame these minerals were taken 
and now we’re going to hide behind, we’re not, it’s the Judge’s ruling that there’s a statute of 
limitations. Anything that can be done statutorily to help the mineral owners? 
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Troy Seibold: It’s highly likely the State will appeal that decision. We have a lot of good arguments 
that the Judge’s ruling is flawed. I can’t speak on behalf of the Land Board and the State Industrial 
Commission. 
 
Rep Heinert:  as the attorney general’s office reviewed the contract the State signed with the 
company that did the land survey? 
 
Troy Seibold:  we have, we review all State contracts.  We haven’t had an allegation of breach of 
contract. 
 
Rep Heinert: are you going to be looking into that further? 
 
Troy Seibold:  if that’s the wish of the committee absolutely. 
 
Chairman Porter: That is the wish of the committee inside of 61-33.104 with the implementation 
language that was placed in 21-34, that there was an implementation component inside of that law 
last session we all thought was included in the survey request and process. When we allocated the 
funds, I now begin to understand why the Wenck study came in so far under budget, because they 
only did a component, not all of the work that was necessary to distribute the funds even though the 
law said it needed to be to the point of funds being distributed. 
 
Rep. Keiser: Could you share with us why there were all the firewalls instead of conversation about 
within the partnership of what to do relative to, is there something prohibiting talking to people and 
we have to have these firewalls versus talking with the industry, speak with the land trust 
department.  
 
Troy Seibold:  I’m not aware of the firewalls these individuals are referring to that we heard earlier. 
I’m not saying they didn’t exist. I’m not aware of them. The state has procurement rules, we have a 
public bidding process, a public comment period. I’m not aware, I hesitate to comment on the 
firewall specifically because I’m not sure what they’re referring to.  
they existed.   
 
Rep. Keiser:  It’s not breach of contract but it’s breach of common sense.  If there’s something that 
requires not to do that, we should know that. If there isn’t, that’s irresponsible that you don’t talk to 
the impacted parties. We need to know why, who, when, where this broke down. This bill is 
appropriating $2.5 million. I assume it’s coming out of the School Lands Trust Department. We’re 
raiding the TIF fund.  This bill gives the Dept. of Trust Lands to negotiate the new contract, why not 
the Industrial Commission? 
 
Troy Seibold:  makes sense with Trust funds since they’ll be cutting the checks.  What entity is up 
to you. 
 
Chairman Porter: closed the hearing on SB 2211. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the determination of the ordinary high water mark; to the ownership of mineral rights of 
land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri Basin Project dams. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Porter:  opened the hearing on SB 2211.  Passed out Attachment 1.  
The first amendment presented by Sen. Bekkedahl is 19.0598.03001 for the emergency clause. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  Move the amendment. 
 
Rep. Lefor:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter: We have a motion and a second to move 03001 that inserts the emergency 
clause. Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
The second amendment from Sen. Bekkedahl presented through the Petroleum Council is 03002, 
is very specific to how things are looked at in regards to riverbed segments. The word inundated, 
the way the State Engineer’s office has interpreted that, is if it was flooded once then it was 
inundated and they aren’t paying for it. As we worked on the high water mark, this language that Mr. 
Smith drafted is proper to how we want it looked at. 
 
Rep. Keiser: move to adopt amendment 03002. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter:  We have a motion and a second for 03002.  Discussion? This is directly related 
to those areas further upstream on the lake. Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
The third issue is one I handed out last session that was placed on to 2134, went to conference, 
eventually was removed off of there. You’d have to overstrike on Line 11, that July 2017 and put in 
July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2021.  All other dates are correct. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  As I suggested during the hearing it’d be nice if we could make them pay the interest 
on the dollars which they own. That’s going to be too difficult. The one thing we could do is pay their 
legal fees. Some of the mineral owners have pretty much spent the total value of their minerals in 
trying to fight the case. This would be some compensation the committee could consider. I don’t 
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know if we can get it through the conference committee, but we’re at a different time, different 
reality than 2 years ago. So I would move the adoption of that amendment. 
 
Chairman Porter: The motion is the Sec.4 Line 11 of the sheet I handed out with the date change 
on Line 11 from July 1, it would read 2019, and then ending June 30, 2021. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  second. 
 
Rep Heinert:  Line 18 and 19, do we need to make adjustments?   
 
Chairman Porter: No that date is right. 
 
Rep. Zubke: is there any idea how much these families have spent and will this cover it all? I’d 
heard last session this might all go to one family. 
 
Rep. Keiser: the reality is, 1 or 2 families did take the lead and spent their dollars. One family is in it 
$300,000. If you’re going to file the lawsuit that issues the same issue I have, I can file as a friend 
but not have to file a lawsuit because they’re going to determine the outcome on your lawsuit. I can 
sit back and not spend any money on attorneys. 
 
Rep Heinert: Looking at that, not knowing how many families are involved, should we have 
something identifying a time frame specific?  They have to apply for and request these funds, the 
dollar amount and turn it over to the State Land Board to make a decision on how much each family 
is going to get? 
 
Chairman Porter: I think the limiting factor based on last session, it’s less than 5 different actions, 
and that sum was very close to what was necessary to do it. I think if we send it off to 
appropriations and into the conference committee, that can be honed down for the dollar amount 
where it needs to be.  
 
Rep Heinert: I don’t know how many families are outside the 5 main families that may have started 
some form of an action and may come back after those 5 families and say I hired an attorney too 
and I got about $5000-$6000 then sat back and watched.  I would like to add something like the 
family has to request the fees to be paid and or within a time frame of the finalization of the product 
the Land Department develops.  
 
Chairman Porter: In order to qualify for this, they would have had to have filed a suit. If they hired a 
lawyer and decided to sit back, those would not be part of this anyway the way it’s written. It’s 
related directly to those who have filed suit. 
Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
Rep. Keiser: Page 3, something to consider. Lines 9-10-11-12, if an interested party, I’m a mineral 
right owner and I want to legally challenge the decision by the land board, my clock starts when 
they make that decision. I question whether the clock shouldn’t start when they pay me. They 
conceivably could make their decision and withhold payment. We don’t have any place in here that 
says once you’ve made a decision you have to pay them. They could withhold payment for 3-4 
months, and now I’ve lost 3-4 months.  Right now the clock starts when they make their decision. Is 
that proper given it’s their money? 
 
Chairman Porter: On Line 11 what would you propose?  
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Rep. Keiser:  This isn’t the correct language but within 2 years of the date, the payment was made 
by the Board of University and School Trust Lands.  It does benefit and give a little more time 
potentially to the mineral right owner.   I’ll move this as an amendment. 
 
Rep Bosch: second. 
 
Chairman Porter: discussion? 
 
Rep Bosch:  I don’t know, once the final decision has been made, their plan of action is to start it 
right then. I don’t know if it really adds, gives that much to the person receiving the funds that we 
wait. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  I point out that the payment isn’t made directly to them. Initially it’s made to the 
producer and the producer has to pay them.  
 
Chairman Porter: So it could be 6-12 months they aren’t aware of what their payment is going to 
be. 
 
Rep. Lefor: If we’re going to make a mistake, let’s make a mistake on the side of the mineral 
owners. They’ve been run through the mud on this and I would support this. They’ve been getting 
the short end of the stick wherever they’ve been going.  So if this gives them a little more latitude 
we should do it. 
 
Chairman Porter:  Remember what Ms. Smith said, once the determination is made, the check is 
not written to the individual, the check is written to the lease holder. The lease holder is responsible 
to pay the mineral holder. 
 
Rep. Lefor:  should there be language in there that payments are made to the mineral rights owner 
versus the lease holder.  
 
Chairman Porter: I don’t think that’s possible from the standpoint that the person inside of the 
lease is the person who leased them from the state. It’s has to go through that extra hoop to get 
back to the individual. 
 
Rep. Zubke: that would be my point. The Board of University Lands is going to make their payment 
back to the operator. It could take the operator up to 18 months to pay the mineral right owners. I 
don’t know that this wording is in a manner to where you’re going to accomplish what you’re trying 
to accomplish. 
 
Rep. Keiser: think of the process. Right now the bill reads the day the State makes a determination 
the clock starts, you’ve got 2 years. What I’m proposing, is the date they make their payment the 
clock starts. They make the payment to the producer. If the producer does not transfer it in a proper 
time manner, the mineral rights owners never sues the state, they sue the producer to get their 
money.  If there’s a lag of 2-3 months before the payment is made, that’s lost time on the clock for 
me to challenge. 
 
Rep. Zubke: but I understand that there are operators that can hold funds up to 18 months they’re 
required to pay interest. You might end up with a small window for that individual to file that lawsuit. 
I just want you to be aware of that. 
 
Rep. Keiser: that’s what I’d like to avoid. 
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Chairman Porter: Wouldn’t there be, when the determination is made, the individual would be able 
to see what the determination is made and how much money went back to the company. So they 
would immediately have the ability to say I disagree with that and start their action? Then it would 
be when the check was written from the State to XYZ oil company, then they would see what that 
was and start their actions against the state. 
 
Rep Bosch:  When we pay the money to have the next round done, I assume they’re going to 
break this down into individual landowners. They’re not going to do the determination on operator 
acreage and mineral owners. To your point we should know exactly what’s been released. 
Everyone should know their allocation.  
 
Chairman Porter: yes.  This will get down to the point of the parcel, the short quarters, the short 
line of the ordinary high water mark of the determination.   
We have a motion and a second on Line 11 to amend, overstrike the words “acreage determination” 
and “approved” and insert “payments were made” by the Board of University of School Lands. 
Voice vote, motion carried.  We have an amended bill. 
 
Rep. Anderson: I move we pass as amended, SB 2211 and rerefer to appropriations.  
 
Rep Bosch:  Second. 
 
Chairman Porter:  We have a motion and a second for a Do Pass as Amended for SB 2211 and 
Rereferred to appropriations.  Discussion? 
Roll call vote   14 yes   0 no   0 absent.  Motion carried.   Rep. Keiser is carrier. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the determination of the ordinary high water mark; to the ownership of mineral rights of 
land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri Basin Project dams. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Porter:  opened the hearing on SB 2211.  The bill has been referred back to committee 
 
Rep. Keiser:  Move to reconsider our actions whereby we passed out SB 2211. 
 
Rep. Lefor: Second 
 
Chairman Porter:  We have a motion and a second to reconsider our actions whereby we passed 
out SB 2211.  Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
As you recall this was the lakebeds mineral bill. Approps amended that. The original bill of Rep. 
Keiser’s that had this proposed language was sent back to us as the lakebed minerals bill as a 
hoghouse in 1192.  If you look on Page 3, Sec 8, it says subject to inundation. That was a big 
component of what we changed as a policy as we sent the bill out. Questions?  
 
Rep. Keiser:  move to adopt 03004 to SB 2211. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  second. 
 
Chairman Porter:   We have a motion and a second to adopt amendment 03004. Discussion? 
Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
Rep. Anderson:  Move a Do Pass as further amended on SB 2211. 
 
Rep. Keiser:  Second 
 
Chairman Porter:  We have a motion and a second for a Do Pass as amended on SB 2211. 
Discussion?  Roll call vote. 14 yes, 0 no, 0 absent.  Motion carried.   Rep. Keiser is carrier.  
 



19.0598.03001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Unruh 

March 4, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2211 

Page 1, line 2, remove "and" 

Page 1, line 5, after "dams" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 3, after line 26, insert: 

"SECTION 4. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0598.03001 



19.0598.03002 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Bekkedahl 

March 7, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2211 

Page 1, line 3, after "sections" insert "61-33.1-02," 

Page 1, line 3, replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page· 1, line 3, after "61-33.1-05" insert", and 61-33.1-07" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "inundated" with "subject to inundation" 

Page 1, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61-33.1-02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedoubject to inundation by 
Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovereign land mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams extends only 
to the historical Missouri riverbed channel up to the ordinary high water mark. The state 
holds no claim or title to any minerals above the ordinary high water mark of the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel inundatednubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan 
Missouri basin project dams, except for original grant lands acquired by the state under 
federal law and any minerals acquired by the state through purchase, foreclosure, or 
other written conveyance. Mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams which are 
located within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Berthold reservation and Standing 
Rock Indian reservation is controlled by other law and is excepted from this section." 

Page 3, after line 2€?, insert: 

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61-33.1-07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction. (Retroactive application -
See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state engineer to regulate the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel, minerals other than oil and gas, or the waters of 
the state, provided the regulation does not affect ownership of oil and gas minerals in 
and under the riverbed or lands above the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel inundatedoubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams." 

Renumber accordingly 
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19.0598.03003 
Title.04000 

Adopted by the House Energy and Natural 
Resources Committee 

March 8, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2211 

Page 1, line 2, remove "and" 

Page 1, line 3, after "sections" insert "61-33.1-02," 

Page 1, line 3, replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 3, after "61-33.1-05" insert ", and 61-33.1-07" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "inundated" with "subject to inundation" 

Page 1, line 5, after "dams" insert "; to provide a contingent appropriation; and to declare an 
emergency" 

Page 1, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61-33.1-02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation by 
Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovereign land mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams extends only 
to the historical Missouri riverbed channel up to the ordinary high water mark. The state 
holds no claim or title to any minerals above the ordinary high water mark of the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan 
Missouri basin project dams, except for original grant lands acquired by the state under 
federal law and any minerals acquired by the state through purchase, foreclosure, or 
other written conveyance. Mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams which are 
located within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Berthold reservation and Standing 
Rock Indian reservation is controlled by other law and is excepted from this section." 

Page 3, line 11, replace "acreage determinations were approved" with "payments were made" 

Page 3, after line 26, insert: 

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61-33.1-07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction. (Retroactive application -
See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state engineer to regulate the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel, minerals other than oil and gas, or the waters of 
the state, provided the regulation does not affect ownership of oil and gas minerals in 
and under the riverbed or lands above the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams. 
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SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - STRATEGIC INVESTMENT AND 
IMPROVEMENTS FUND - REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL EXPENSES. 

o& s/t/;q 
dof d 

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys held in reserve in the strategic 
investment and improvements fund for mineral title disputes, not otherwise 
appropriated, the sum of $750,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, to the commissioner of university and school lands for the 
purpose of reimbursing legal expenses as provided in subsection 2, for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2 .  The commissioner of university and school lands shall use funds 
appropriated in subsection 1 to reimburse actual legal and expert fees 
incurred and requested by any private mineral owner, or the owner's 
successors in interest, who reserved the mineral rights, through deed or 
condemnation order from the court, when the United States acquired the 
owner's property as part of the land acquisitions for Garrison Dam and its 
reservoir, Lake Sakakawea, and who filed a lawsuit against the state of 
North Dakota after December 31, 2011, but before December 31, 2016, 
and which lawsuit was pending as of February 1, 2017, claiming title to 
reserved mineral rights. The legal and expert fees may not be reimbursed 
until the final adjudication, settlement, or other resolution of the lawsuit for 
which they were incurred. 

SECTION 7. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure. "  

Renumber accordingly 
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1 9.0598.03004 
Title.05000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Porter 

March 21, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2211 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after "enact" insert "section 61 -33-01 .1 and" 

Page 1, line 2, remove "and" 

D @ 1, l/ &/l1 
I at 'I 

Page 1 ,  line 3, after "sections" insert "61 -33-01 and 61-33. 1 -02, subdivision e of subsection 3 of 
section 61-33. 1 -03, sections" 

Page 1, line 3, replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1 ,  line 3, after "61-33.1-05" insert ", and 61-33.1-07' ' 

Page 1 ,  line 4, after "to" insert "sovereign lands, determining the ordinary high water mark, and" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, replace "inundated" with "subject to inundation" 

Page 1 ,  line 5, after "dams" insert "; to provide a contingent appropriation; to provide for 
application; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 61-33-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61 -33-01 . Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires: 

1. "Board" means the sovereign lands advisory board. 

2. "Board of university and school lands" means that entity created by section 
15-01 -01. 

3. "Ordinary high water mark" means the continuous line along the banks of 
navigable rivers and lakes where the presence and action of waters of the 
navigable river or lake are so common and usual, and so long continued in 
all ordinary years, as to mark upon the bank of a navigable river or lake a 
character distinct from that of the abutting upland. The ordinary high water 
mark line must be continuous in elevation or gently sloping, following the 
gradient of the river. 

4. "Sovereign lands" means those areas, including beds and islands, lying 
within the ordinary high water mark of navigable lakes and streams. Lands 
established to be riparian accretion or reliction lands pursuant to section 
47-06-05 are considered to be above the ordinary high water mark and are 
not sovereign lands. 

4-:-5. "State engineer" means the person appointed by the state water 
commission pursuant to section 61 -03-01 . 

SECTION 2. Section 61 -33-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 
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61 -33-01 . 1 .  Ordinary high water mark determination - Factors to be 
considered . 

The state engineer shall maintain ordinary high water mark delineation 
guidelines consistent with this section. 

i_ When determining the ordinary high water mark for delineating the 
boundary of sovereign lands, vegetation and soils analysis must be 
considered the primary physical indicators. When considering vegetation, 
the ordinary high water mark is the line below which the presence and 
action of the water is frequent enough to prevent the growth of terrestrial 
vegetation or restrict vegetation growth to predominately aquatic species. 
Generally, land, including hay land, where the high and continuous 
presence of water has destroyed the value of the land for agricultural 
purposes must be deemed within the ordinary high water mark. 

2. When feasible, direct hydrological and hydraulic measurements from 
stream gauge data, elevation data, historic records of water flow, high 
resolution light detection and ranging systems, prior elevation and survey 
maps, and statistical hydrological evidence must be considered when 
determining the ordinary high water mark. The state engineer shall 
establish appropriate guidelines, technical standards, and other criteria, 
including use of light detection and ranging systems or other future 
technological advancements, as necessary, for conducting hydrologic and 
hydraulic modeling required by this section. 

� Secondary physical indicators, including litter, debris, or staining, may be 
considered to supplement the analysis of the ordinary high water mark 
investigation but may not supersede primary physical indicators unless 
primary physical indicators are deemed inadequate or inconclusive. 
Physical indicators directly affected by influent non-navigable tributaries, 
adjoining water bodies, or wetlands may not be used to delineate the 
sovereign land boundary of a navigable body of water. 

SECTION 3 .  AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61 -33. 1 -02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation by 
Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovereign land mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams extends only 
to the historical Missouri riverbed channel up to the ordinary high water mark. The state 
holds no claim or title to any minerals above the ordinary high water mark of the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan 
Missouri basin project dams, except for original grant lands acquired by the state under 
federal law and any minerals acquired by the state through purchase, foreclosure, or 
other written conveyance. Mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams which are 
located within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Berthold reservation and Standing 
Rock Indian reservation is controlled by other law and is excepted from this section. 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subdivision e of subsection 3 of section 61-33.1-03 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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e. Subsection � of section 61-33-01 and section 47-06-05, which 
provide al l  accretions are presumed to be above the ordinary high 
water mark and are not sovereign lands. Accreted lands may be 
determined to be within the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel based on clear and convincing evidence. 
Areas of low-lying and flat lands  where the ord inary high water mark 
may be impracticable to determine due to inconclusive aerial 
photography or inconclusive vegetation analysis must be presumed to 
be above the ordinary high water mark and owned by the riparian 
landowner." 

Page 3, line 11, replace "acreage determinations were approved" with "payments were made" 

Page 3, after line 26, insert: 

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33. 1 -07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction. (Retroactive application -
See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state engineer to regulate the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel, minerals other than oil and gas, or the waters of 
the state, provided the regulation does not affect ownership of oil and gas minerals in 
and under the riverbed or lands above the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams. 

SECTION 9. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - STRATEGIC INVESTMENT 
AND IMPROVEMENTS FUND - REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL EXPENSES. 

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys held in reserve in the strategic 
investment and improvements fund for mineral title disputes, not otherwise 
appropriated, the sum of $750,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, to the commissioner of university and school lands for the 
purpose of reimbursing legal expenses as provided in subsection 2, for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. The commissioner of university and school lands shal l  use funds 
appropriated in subsection 1 to reimburse actual legal and expert fees 
incurred and requested by any private mineral owner, or the owner's 
successors in interest, who reserved the mineral rights, through deed or 
condemnation order from the court, when the United States acquired the 
owner's property as part of the land acquisitions for Garrison Dam and its 
reservoir, Lake Sakakawea, and who filed a lawsuit against the state of 
North Dakota after December 31, 2011, but before December 31, 2016, 
and which lawsuit was pending as of February 1, 2017, claiming title to 
reserved mineral rights. The legal and expert fees may not be reimbursed 
until the final adjudication, settlement, or other resolution of the lawsuit for 
which they were incurred. 

SECTION 1 0. APPLICATION. Sections 1 and 2 of this Act do not apply to the 
ordinary high water mark study required for the historical Missouri riverbed channel in 
chapter 61-33.1. This Act does not affect or limit the authority of the state engineer to 
regulate waters of this state. 
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SECTION 1 1 .  EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
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House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ..... 1:1 __ � ...... Q ..... i_q.._<g ...... ,_0 ___ 3"'-----'"-0--"0_.._/ ________ _ 

Recommendation: � Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
0 Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: 0 Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By �5£1C: Seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter Rep. Lefor 
Vice Chairman Damschen ReP. Marschall 
Rep, Anderson Rep. Roers Jones 
Rep Bosch Rep. Ruby 
Rep. Devl in  Rep. Zubke 
Rep. Heinert 
Rep. Keiser Rep. Mitskog 

Rep. Eidson 
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(Yes) ---------- --------------

Floor Assignment 
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D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: 0 Reconsider D 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Porter Rep. Lefor 
Vice Chairman Damschen Rep. Marschall 
Rep. Anderson Rep. Roers Jones 
Rep Bosch Rep. Ruby 
Rep. Devl in Rep. Zubke 
Rep. Heinert 
Rep. Keiser Rep. Mitskog 

Rep. Eidson 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __________ No _____________ _ 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date:__ 3 - 8 - {9 
Roll Call Vote #: 3 ' 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. e?cx. / I _ 

House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ---------------------
Recommendation: 3f/ Adopt Amendment 
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Chairman Porter Rep. Lefor 
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Rep. Devlin  Rep. Zubke 
Rep. Heinert 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2211, as engrossed : Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , 
recommends DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee 
( 1 4  YEAS , 0 NAYS , 0 ABSENT AN D NOT VOT ING) .  Engrossed SB 22 1 1  was 
p laced on the S ixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  2 ,  remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3 ,  after "sections" insert "6 1 -33 . 1 -02 , "  

Page 1 ,  l i n e  3 ,  rep lace t h e  second "and" with a comma 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 3 ,  after "6 1 -33 . 1 -05" insert " ,  and 6 1 -33 . 1 -07" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  4, rep lace " i nundated" with "subject to i n undation" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 5 ,  after "dams" insert " ;  to provide a conti ngent appropriation ; and to declare an 
emergency" 

Page 1 ,  afte r l i ne  6, i nsert : 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 6 1 -33 . 1 -02 of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

6 1-33. 1-02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation 
by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovere ign land m inera l  ownersh ip  of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to i n undation by P ick-S loan M issouri bas in  project dams extends 
on ly to the h istorical M issou ri riverbed channe l  up to the ord i na ry h igh water mark .  
The state ho lds no c la im or title to any m inera ls above the ord i nary h igh water mark 
of the h istorica l M issou ri riverbed channe l  inundatedsubject to i nu ndat ion by 
P ick-S loan M issou ri bas in project dams,  except for orig ina l  g rant  lands acqu i red by 
the state u nder federa l  law and any minera ls acq u ired by the state through  purchase , 
foreclosu re ,  or other written conveyance. M inera l  ownersh i p  of the riverbed 
segments inundatedsubject to i n undat ion by P ick-S loan M issouri bas in p roject dams 
which a re located with i n  the exter ior boundaries of the Fort Bertho ld  reservat ion and 
Stand i ng  Rock I nd ian reservation  is contro l led by other law and is  excepted from this 
section . "  

Page 3 ,  l i ne  1 1 ,  rep lace "acreage determ inat ions were approved" with "payments were 
made" 

Page 3 ,  after l i ne  26,  insert :  

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 6 1 -33 . 1 -07 of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

61-33. 1-07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction. (Retroactive 
application - See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state eng i neer to regu late 
the h istorical M issouri riverbed chan ne l ,  m inerals other than o i l  and  gas ,  or the 
waters of the state , provided the regu lation does not affect ownersh i p  of oi l and gas 
m inerals in and under the riverbed or lands above the ord i nary h i gh  water mark of 
the h istorica l M issouri riverbed channe l  inundatedsu bject to i n u ndation  by P ick-S loan 
M issouri bas in  p roject dams. 

SECTION 6.  APPROPRIATION - STRATEGIC INVESTMENT AND 
IMPROVEMENTS FUND - REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL EXPENSES. 
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1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys he ld i n  reserve i n  the strateg ic 
i nvestment and i m provements fund for m inera l t i t le d isputes , not 
otherwise appropriated , the sum of $750 ,000 ,  or so much of the sum as 
may be necessary, to the commissioner of u n ivers ity and  school  lands for 
the pu rpose of re imburs ing legal expenses as prov ided i n  subsection  2 ,  
for the b ienn i um  beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , a n d  end i ng J u ne 30 ,  2 02 1 . 

2 .  The  comm issioner o f  un ivers ity and  school lands sha l l  use  funds  
appropriated i n  subsection 1 to re imburse actua l  lega l  and expert fees 
incu rred and req uested by any private minera l owner, or the owner's 
successors i n  interest, who reserved the m inera l  r ig hts ,  through  deed or 
condemnation order from the court ,  when the U n ited States acq u i red the 
owner's p roperty as part of the land acq u isit ions  for Garrison Dam and its 
reservoir, Lake Sakakawea, and who fi led a laws u it aga i nst the state of 
North Dakota after December 3 1 , 20 1 1 ,  but before December 3 1 , 20 1 6 ,  
and which lawsu it was pend ing as of  February 1 ,  2 0 1 7 ,  c la im i ng  t it le to 
reserved m i nera l  rights . The legal and expert fees may not be 
re imbursed u nt i l  the fi na l  adjud ication ,  sett lement ,  o r  other  resol ut ion of 
the lawsu it for which they were i ncurred . 

SECTION 7. EMERGENCY. Th is Act is declared to be an  emergency 
measure . "  

Renumber accord i ng ly 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2211, as engrossed and amended: Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

(Rep. Porter, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when 
so amended , recommends DO PASS ( 1 4  YEAS , 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT 
VOTI NG) .  Eng rossed SB 22 1 1 ,  as amended , was p laced on the S ixth order on  the 
ca lendar. 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  1 ,  after "enact" i nsert "section 6 1 -33-0 1 . 1  and" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3 ,  after "sections" i nsert "6 1 -33-0 1 and 6 1 -33 . 1 -02 , subd iv is ion e of 
subsectio n  3 of section 6 1 -33. 1 -03 ,  sect ions" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  3 ,  rep lace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 3 ,  after "6 1 -33. 1 -05" insert " ,  and 6 1 -33 . 1 -07' ' 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  4, after "to" insert "sovereig n lands ,  determ in i ng  the ord i nary h ig h  water mark ,  
and"  

Page 1 ,  l i ne  4 ,  rep lace " i n undated" with "subject to  i n undation" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 5 ,  after "dams" i nsert " ;  to prov ide a conti ngent appropriation ; to p rovide for 
app l icati on ;  and to declare an  emergency" 

Page 1 ,  afte r l i ne  6 ,  i nsert :  

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 6 1 -33-0 1 of the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

6 1-33-01. Definitions. 

As used in th is chapter, u n less the context otherwise req u i res :  

1 .  "Board" means the sovereig n lands advisory board . 

2 .  "Board of u n iversity a n d  school lands" means that entity created by 
section 1 5-0 1 -0 1 . 

3 .  "Ord inary h igh water mark" means the  conti n uous l i ne  a long the  banks of 
navigable rivers and lakes where the presence and action  of waters of 
the navigable river or lake are so common and usua l ,  and so long 
conti nued i n  a l l  ord inary years, as to mark upon the bank of a navigable 
r iver or lake a character d ist inct from that of the abutt ing upland .  The 
ord i nary h igh water mark l ine must be contin uous  in e levation o r  gently 
s loping, fo l lowing the grad ient of the river. 

4 .  "Sovere ign lands" means those areas ,  i nc lud ing beds and is lands ,  ly ing 
with i n  the ord i nary h igh water mark of navigab le lakes and streams .  
Lands estab l ished to be r iparian accretion or  re l ict ion lands pu rsuant to 
section 47-06-05 are cons idered to be above the ord i nary h i gh  water 
mark and are not sovere ign lands .  

4:-§.,_ "State eng i neer" means the person appo inted by the state water 
commission pursuant to section 6 1 -03-0 1 . 

SECTION 2. Section 61 -33-0 1 . 1  of the North Dakota Centu ry Code is 
created and enacted as fo l lows : 
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61-33-01 .1 .  Ordinary high water mark determination - Factors to be 
considered . 

The state engineer sha l l  mainta in  ord i nary h igh water mark de l i neat ion 
gu ide l i nes cons istent with th is section . 

.1. When determ in i ng the ord i nary h igh water mark for de l i neati ng the 
boundary of sovereign lands. vegetation and soi ls a na lys is  must be 
cons idered the primary physical i nd icators. Whe n  cons ider ing vegetation. 
the ord i na ry h igh water mark is the l ine below wh ich the presence and 
action  of  the water is frequent enough to prevent the growth of terrestria l  
vegetation or restrict vegetation growth to predom inate ly aquat ic species. 
Genera l ly. land. i nc lud ing hay land. where the h igh  and conti n uous  
presence of  water has  destroyed the  value of  the land for agricu ltu ra l  
pu rposes must be deemed with i n  the ord inary h igh water mark .  

2-,_ When feas ib le. d i rect hyd ro logical and hyd rau l ic measu rements from 
stream gauge data. elevation data. h istoric records of water flow. h igh 
resolut ion l ight detect ion and rangi ng systems. prior  e levat ion and su rvey 
maps. and statistical hyd ro logica l ev idence must be cons idered when 
determ i n i ng the ord i nary h igh water mark. The state engi neer sha l l  
estab l ish  appropriate gu ide l i nes. techn ical standards. and other  criteria. 
i ncl ud i ng use of l ight detection and ranging systems or other future 
techno logical advancements. as necessary. for conduct ing hyd ro logic 
and hyd rau l ic mode l i ng requ ired by th is section . 

.1_ Secondary physical i nd icators. inc lud ing l itter. debris. or sta i n i ng. may be 
cons idered to supplement the analys is of the ord i na ry h igh water mark 
investigat ion but may not supersede primary physica l  i nd icators un less 
primary phys ica l i nd icators are deemed i nadequate or  inconc lus ive . 
Physical  i nd icators d i rectly affected by i nfl uent non-navigab le tri butaries. 
adjo i n i ng water bod ies. or wetlands may not be used to de l i neate the 
sovereign land bou ndary of a navigable body of water. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 6 1 -33 . 1 -02 of the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

61-33. 1-02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation 
by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovere ign land m i neral ownersh ip  of the riverbed seg ments 
inundatedsubject to i n undation by P ick-Sloan M issouri bas in  project dams extends 
on ly to  the h isto rical M issouri riverbed channe l  up  to  the ord i nary h i gh  water mark. 
The state holds no  c la im or t i t le to any m inerals above the ord i na ry h i gh  water mark 
of the h istorical M issouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to i n u ndat ion by 
P ick-S loan M issou ri bas i n  project dams.  except for orig ina l  g rant  lands acq u i red by 
the state u nder federa l  law and any m inerals acqu i red by the state through  pu rchase, 
foreclosu re ,  or other written conveyance. M inera l ownersh ip  of the riverbed 
segments inundatedsubject to i nundation  by Pick-S loan M issou ri bas in  project dams 
which are located with i n  the exterior boundaries of the Fort Bertho ld  reservation and 
Stand ing  Rock I nd ian  reservation is control led by other law and is excepted from th is  
section .  

SECTION 4.  AMENDMENT. Subdivis ion e of subsect ion 3 o f  section  
6 1 -33 . 1 -03 o f  t he  North Dakota Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows: 

e. Su bsection � of sect ion 61 -33-0 1 and sect ion 47-06-05 ,  wh ich 
provide a l l  accretions are presumed to be above the ord i na ry h i gh  
water mark and  are no t  sovere ign lands .  Accreted l ands  may be 
determ i ned to be with i n  the ord inary h igh  water mark of the h istorical 
M issou ri r iverbed channe l  based on clear and convi nc ing evidence.  
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Areas of low-ly ing and flat lands where the ord i na ry h i g h  water mark 
may be impracticable to determ ine due to i nconc lus ive aer ia l  
photography or  inconc lus ive vegetation  ana lys is  m ust be p resumed 
to be above the ord inary h igh water mark and owned by the ri par ian 
landowner. "  

Page 3 ,  l i ne  1 1 ,  rep lace "acreage determ inations were approved" with "payments were 
made" 

Page 3 ,  after l ine 26 ,  i nsert :  

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 6 1 -33 . 1 -07 of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code is amended and reenacted as fo l lows : 

6 1-33. 1-07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction. (Retroactive 
application - See note) 

Th is  chapter does not affect the authority of the state eng ineer to regu late 
the h istorica l M issouri riverbed chan nel , m inera ls other than o i l  and gas ,  or the 
waters of the state , provided the regu lation does not affect ownersh i p  of oi l  and gas 
m i nerals i n  and under the riverbed or  lands above the ord i na ry h i gh  water mark of 
the h istorica l  M issouri riverbed chan nel inundatedsubject to i n u ndation  by P ick-S loan 
M issou ri bas i n  p roject dams. 

SECTION 9. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - STRATEGIC 
INVESTMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS FUND - REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL 
EXPENSES. 

1 .  There is appropriated out of any moneys he ld i n  reserve i n  the strateg ic 
i nvestment and im provements fund for m i nera l  t i t le d isputes , not 
otherwise appropriated , the sum of $750 , 000 ,  or so m uch of the sum as 
may be necessary, to the commissioner of u n ivers ity and  school lands for 
the pu rpose of re imburs ing legal expenses as p rovided i n  subsection  2 ,  
for t he  b ien n i um beg inn ing J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 ,  and end i ng  J u ne 30 , 202 1 . 

2 .  The  comm issioner of u n ivers ity and  school l a nds  sha l l  u se  funds 
appropriated i n  subsection 1 to  re imburse actual lega l  and expert fees 
i ncu rred and req uested by any p rivate m ineral owner, o r  the owner's 
successors in  interest, who reserved the m inera l  rig hts , th rough deed or 
condemnation order from the cou rt ,  when the U n ited States acqu i red the 
owner's p roperty as part of the land acq u is it ions  for Garr ison Dam and its 
reservo i r, Lake Sakakawea,  and who fi led a lawsu it aga inst the state of 
North Dakota after December 3 1 , 20 1 1 ,  but  before December 3 1 , 20 1 6 , 
and which lawsu i t  was pend ing as of February 1 ,  20 1 7 , c la im ing  tit le to 
reserved m ineral rig hts. The lega l  and expert fees may not be 
re imbursed unt i l  the fi na l  adjud ication ,  sett lement ,  or  other  resol ut ion of 
the lawsu it for which they were i ncurred . 

SECTION 10. APPLICATION. Sections 1 and 2 of th is  Act do not app ly to 
the ord i na ry h igh  water mark study requ i red for the h istorical M issou ri riverbed 
channe l  in chapter 6 1 -33 . 1 .  This Act does not affect or l im it the authority of the state 
eng i neer to reg u late waters of th is state . 

SECTION 11. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure . "  

Ren u m ber accord i ng ly  
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☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist by Caitlin Fleck  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection relating to the determination of 
the ordinary high water mark; to amend and reenact relating to the ownership of mineral 
rights of land subject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams; to provide 
a contingent appropriation; and to declare an emergency. 

 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Opened hearing. 
 
Representative Porter: This is a familiar bill to this committee. It is a companion bill to the 
bill we passed last session. We came to the conclusion that we need to resurvey the Wanck 
Survey and re-determine the water park and set the pins for the shore height of the lake. 
We also want to pay back the money right away. We found that the way the RFP (request 
for proposal) was drafted and the work was done, it would not be complete enough to 
actually set the pins to the property lines for the minerals and it would be impossible for the 
land department to send the money out. These aren’t square sections. These are curves on 
a river that maybe 3 acres that has to be brought down to that level and then determined to 
go back to the owner. The stuff that is completely under water would still be easy enough 
for the state to do because it is still in one quarter. The person still has the deed that says 
they were deeded the mineral areas there. This is to clear up the shoreline areas based on 
the new study. It would be 2.5 million to higher to company to do the title work. The land 
department will not be paying the individual back, but they will pay back the oil company. 
The oil company will then pay the individual back because it has to reverse the transaction 
that happened. They will figure out who owns the area, and who to pay the money back. 
They must also determine the bonus lease and then also any allocation that was given. The 
production side of it is held in escrow of the oil company because there is no title.  
 
Chairman Delzer: It will cost 2-2.5 million, is there authority to use money from the existing 
list?  
 
Representative Porter: What we took was the basis of the fiscal note told us that SB2211 
would authorize the board to hire the survey to determine the acreage and they are 
determining the cost of that to be 2 million dollars. Section 1 of the fiscal note authorizes the 
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board to hire the firm. Does it flat out say that they can spend the 2 million in the bill, I don’t 
know. We went off of the fiscal note.  
 
Chairman Delzer: We would have to find that out.  
 
Representative Porter: Section 1 of the bill is new out of the energy and natural resources 
committee. That is the ongoing fight between the state of ND and the original lawsuit that 
brought both of these bills to us that said that we agreed that this was wrong and that we 
took someone else’s property. Now the ongoing discussion is how the state engineer’s office 
is using the word inundated and the information we got was that it had been under water 
once and that it was inundated and that they are now claiming the land. The committee took 
all of that information and determined that that was not what we meant. So we worked with 
Mr. Smith who had helped us last session with the drafting of the SB and came up with this 
language so that it’s not just a single inundation, but that the property is subject to inundation 
in normal flow years. That’s what section 1 clears up and then the other amendment is one 
that you put on during last session in regards to the legal fees in section 6 of this bill. The 
committee determined that we in fact did take this property and that it does belong to 
someone else. We felt obligated that we lost, we took something that wasn’t outs. They 
incurred a huge amount of legal fees and we thought it was only fair to reimburse them for 
those legal fees. That is what section 6 will do. 
 
Chairman Delzer: You said that we had that in there last time, but there weren’t any fees 
paid?  
 
Representative Porter: Yes, but it was pulled out during conference committee. We 
negotiated to the point of finalizing this, we came to the conclusion that this would again be 
addressed when appropriate, and we think that we are at the point in this next biennium that 
the money will be paid out after this study and this would be the appropriate time to discuss 
paying that back.   
 
Chairman Delzer: Do you remember how we conferenced this?  
 
Representative Porter: The bill came back to me. I chose who I thought would be the A 
team, and then I pulled off an appropriation person, then we finalized it. We put 
Representative Kaiser, Representative Martinson, and Representative Mitskog. They took 
it up with the Senate. My full intention with the bill coming back to me is that it would be 
Representative Keiser, Representative Martinson and maybe even myself this time. We all 
felt very strongly this time that we pay back the family.  
 
Chairman Delzer: That 750 is listed to come out of the reserve money? The wording subject 
to inundation, isn’t that even more broad then inundated? 
 
Representative Porter: Yes, line one it is the money held out of reserve. We had that 
language brought to us by Mrs. Smith and he is the expert in these areas and in this part of 
the law and he said that this is what fixed it.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Where is that 2.7 million coming from? 
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14:30 Jody Smith, Commissioner for the Board of University and School land: I would 
have to go back but there is about 3 that grant the department the authority to oversee the 
investments for the SIIF fund. We have done four studies along the river and already have 
that authority from the board. We were requesting the authority and permission to continue 
those studies.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Where is the money actually coming from? 
 
Mrs. Smith: It’s coming from SIIF (strategic investment and improvement fund). We won’t 
be paying it all back out, because the study appropriate 9000 acres more to the state than 
estimated and we are holding that in escrow at the Bank of North Dakota and the state just 
wouldn’t take that. So to come degree yes it would be coming out of SIIF, so instead of 
paying it back out, the state would be short 2 million.  
 
Chairman Delzer: How long do you think this will take? 
 
Mrs. Smith: It would be up to 2 million dollars, and are not awarding that contract until you 
are through session. Last session there were a few stipulations that were put on the 
industrial commission and some parameters about who would be allowed to complete this 
process. We expect it will take 12 months to complete the survey and then another 24 
months to get those dollars back out the door.  
 
Chairman Delzer: So it’s about another 3 years? 
 
Mrs. Smith: If all goes well. We are also asking to reset the clock for fee owners. So the 
state currently is that the fee owner can bring litigation against the state because they 
disagree with how the survey was done. We don’t have any of that litigation because we 
don’t know the acreage adjustments either.  
 
Chairman Delzer: They have two years after they find that out? 
 
Mrs. Smith: Correct, because there is a disagreement upon the acreage. If all goes well, 
we anticipate that we could do 40 acreage adjustments a month and we have about 500 to 
do. 
 
Chairman Delzer: We will hand on to that bill, and have a discussion on it later.  
 
Meeting closed.  
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Relating to the ownership of mineral rights of land subject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri 
basin project dams; to provide a contingent appropriation; and to declare an emergency. 

 

Minutes:                                                  

 
 
Chairman Delzer: Called meeting to order for SB 2211, this is the high water mark bill. 
When we had the discussion here they claimed that they had the right with a continuing 
appropriation to spend the 2 million dollars for the setting of the high water marks. There’s 
some questions about it so I think we should appropriate it. It does allow them to spend up 
to the 2 million dollars. Any Further questions?  
 
Representative J. Nelson: I’ll move to adopt amendment 19.0598.03006 
 
Representative Kreidt: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: We have a motion to amend SB 2211 with amendment .03006, any 
discussion on the motion? Seeing none, Voice Vote, All in Favor, Motion Carries. Any 
further amendments ready for this bill? We will close the meeting until those other 
amendments are done.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 

Relating to the ownership of mineral rights of land subject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri 
basin project dams; to provide a contingent appropriation; and to declare an emergency. 

 

Minutes:                                                  

 
 
Chairman Delzer: Called meeting to order for SB 2211, this is giving appropriation 
authority for the 2 million dollars for the high water mark. We amended that onto the bill 
because there were some questions about the authority. I think this is something that has 
to go forward, we need to get the answer in all these things. This does also allow for up to 
750 thousand out of the money it SIIF, that is set aside for the settlement of this, to go to 
some of the lawyers of some of the people allowed.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: I didn’t have that we moved the amendments?  
 
Chairman Delzer: We previously adopted amendment 19.0598.03006, and it’s in addition 
to the other amendments that where adopted by Energy and Natural Resources.  
 
Representative Kempenich: I will move 2211 as amended 
 
Representative Beadle: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: Further discussion? Seeing none will call the roll. 
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:     17         Nay:   0          Absent:     4 
 
Motion Carries, Representative Keiser will carry the bill.  
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close this meeting.  
 
Per Chairman Delzer, amendment 19.0598.03006 will be discussed during conference 
committee. Amendment was not adopted on the house floor.  
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19.0598.03006 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Delzer 

March 22, 2019 

PRO POSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSS ED S ENATE BI LL NO. 2211 

In addition to the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 1128-1130 of the 
House Journal , Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2211 is further amended as follows: 

Page 1, l ine 5, after "dams" insert "; to provide an appropriation" 

Page 3, after l ine 26, insert: 

"SECTION 7. APPROPRIATION - STRATEGIC INVESTMENT AND 
IMPROVEMENTS FUND. There is appropriated out of any moneys in the strategic 
investment and improvements fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, 
the sum of $2,000 ,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the 
com m issioner of university and school lands for the purpose of contracting with a 
qualif ied engineering and surveying firm to analyze the final review findings pursuant to 
section 2 of this Act, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 
2021. "  

Renumber accordingly 

STATEMENT OF P U RPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 

This amendment provides an appropriation to the Commissioner of University and School 
Lands to contract with a qualified engineering and surveying firm to analyze the final review 

• 
findings . 

• 

Page No. 1 19.0598.03006 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the determination of the ordinary high water mark; relating to sovereign lands, 
determining the ordinary high water mark, and the ownership of mineral rights of land subject 
to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams; to provide a contingent 
appropriation; to provide for application; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments  

 
Chair Unruh: Opened the conference committee, all conferees were present.  
 
Representative Keiser: We took SB 2211 and amended the language we had in HB 1192 
back in, specifically the definition of Ordinary High Water Mark (OHWM) on page 1, and 
section 2, the definition of factors to be considered in identifying the OHWM. The next major 
changes are on section 9, the contingent appropriation for $750,000 for those folks that were 
involved in the lawsuit and incurred attorney’s fees to be compensated; an application in 
section 10 and the emergency clause in section 11. You have seen this before in HB 1192, 
we feel relatively strongly about those areas, so we amended those elements into this bill.  
 
Chair Unruh: We had taken a policy position on not needing the OHWM in the century code, 
and eliminating that bill. There were some changes to the original version of SB 2211 that 
didn’t make it all the way through. Of course, we had the discussion about the legal fee 
reimbursement last legislative session; we are back here again, late in the game, with the 
same thing in front of us. I don’t think the Senate position has changed on any of that.  
 
Representative Keiser: The one reason I know our committee feels strongly about these 
two areas is, one, first the OHWM, the research we did, most states do have a definition in 
their century code. We feel it appropriate that we do that. On the House hearing side, we 
looked at several photo examples of inconsistencies that were not defensible. They seemed 
arbitrary. We’ve got examples of where immediately across a river, the OHWM being several 
inches or feet different, that seems impossible. We felt it was important to put it in century 
code. The second area, we were willing to give that up last session, when the Wenck study 
was approved and funded, it was our assumption that they would define the original OWHM 
that could be used for making determination for the mineral assets under the river bed that 
belong to individuals. We were surprised to discover when this bill was introduced, that the 



Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee  
SB 2211 
4/22/19 
Page 2  
   

Wenck study did define the original OHWM, but failed to provide adequate information 
regarding who owned what. We were now obligated to do a second study, and to fund that 
in order to make that determination. It was a very contentious hearing on our side, we took 
all of the parties to task, if was our understanding, clearly our intent that you make these 
determinations. We were surprised by some of the answers by some of the departments. 
Two departments claimed they were given instructions to not interfere with this process. For 
those individuals who went to court, and brought this case forward; we assumed that they 
would be paid after the Wenck study. Now we are at another two years, another study, to 
make that determination. I was willing to make an agreement last time; I am not this time. 
We need to give them some compensation or give them their minerals, and apparently we 
can’t, because the Wenck study did not provide adequate information to make that 
determination by the land department.  
 
Representative Martinson: My opinion hasn’t changed since last session. We have a case 
where the state of North Dakota stole minerals from private people. The court has agreed 
that the state stole those minerals. Why should they have to pay over $450,000 to go to court 
to get back what was taken from them? That isn’t fair. 
 
Representative Porter: A couple things that tie into this, when we looked at the OHWM, and 
dealt with that, it was prior to the discussion that the Senate had on HB 1202, with the 
hoghouse amendment that was sent back to us on navigable water. This ties into that, there 
was another apparent taking of private property. Those two issues tie directly together. If we 
don’t set in code, as the policy makers in North Dakota, the definitions, then we’re leaving it 
up to an agency to make those determinations. We’ve caught them twice, taking stuff that 
wasn’t theirs. The other key component to this definition is on page 3, section 3, on the 05000 
version, is ‘subject to inundation’. If you leave it as ‘inundated,’ you could have somebody’s 
hay land that is flooded once every 30 years, the state of North Dakota would use that and 
come in and take that property. You just got done fixing a situation with HB 1202. By not 
fixing the rest of it, you’re going to be back here again talking about it again. We can’t just 
pick and choose how we fix this. We have to fix it back to the point that it’s on us. That we’ve 
already been in a situation twice now where it hasn’t been on us, we’ve given it to 
administrative rules side of the world. It hasn’t worked. Just on the OHWM component of this 
discussion, I think it’s extremely important that we set the policy, because they’re not getting 
the phone calls, or the individuals saying they just took my land. Those all come back to us, 
and then we sit and say, what did you do? They say it’s well within the administrative rules 
to do that, we have to take on the ownership. If we’re going to take on the problem, we have 
to take on the ownership of the policy too. It’s our job to determine the policy to make sure it 
fair to not only the state, but also to the people that own the land that is being taken. 
 
Chair Unruh: I think that we should take a closer look at the language that the House has in 
their OWHM definitions. Maybe we can come to a point where we can find some agreement 
on what it should look like. I think that is feasible; I think what is not feasible, is a contingent 
$750,000 appropriation added in at the final hour. While I understand the argument for it, it’s 
not like this was something that was stumbled upon in the middle of this legislative session. 
A separate bill with own hearing, and its own vetting process through the legislative process, 
maybe it could have been something that we could have agreed to, but to add it on at the 
last minute toward the end of the session, two times in a row? The Senate position on it being 
unconstitutional hasn’t changed. Do I think that that family should get those legal fees back? 
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Absolutely. I hope the court system would do that. That is not our job as a legislature, no 
matter what the situation was, to make sure that legal fees are paid. I have this 
constitutionality discussion frequently in our ethics hearings that we’ve had all session as 
well. While we would like to do things, while we would like to pass some laws, there are just 
checks and balances in place such as the constitution, that keep us from doing that. While I 
would like to do that, it is not our role. 
 
Representative Martinson:  Who determines constitutionality of a bill we pass? 
 
Chair Unruh: As you know, the courts do that. 
 
Representative Martinson: So you know the answer too. It is not our job to determine 
constitutionality.  
 
Chair Unruh: Yes, the courts decide that, certainly, but it is our job as a legislature to act 
within those bounds that we have. Like I said the Senate stood firm on this last time, we will 
continue to stand firm on it, even though it is not an easy issue to stand firm on. 
 
Representative Martinson left the meeting.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: The notion that our department heads, who I’ve found tremendous to 
work with, were under some instruction to back off, or let it go, I don’t understand that 
language, it’s not my experience that these people act in this manner. They act in the best 
interest of their job description and the state. 
 
Chair Unruh: This issue is an emotional one for all of us, we all feel that the state has 
wronged people as we’ve moved through this process. My hope is that we can set the best 
policy we can moving forward to keep it from ever happening again.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Perhaps the original action, as you mentioned the Senate bill gives us 
time to look at the situation, rectify it, not pay these fees in advance and take care of the 
situation.  
 
Representative Keiser: I am not a constitutional attorney; could you explain the information 
that you have that makes it unconstitutional to do? 
 
Chair Unruh: I have our intern going through all those pieces to collect those. You can go 
back to the gifting clause or the separate roles of the legislature, courts system, and the 
executive branch and constitution. I will collect more information and bring you some specific 
citations at our next meeting. What I would also like to propose to bring to the next conference 
committee meeting are some concerns that have been expressed by the surveying society 
as well as a couple of other folks, as to what the exact language in the first two pieces of the 
bill are, to try and put all of those pieces together so we can have some of those specific 
policy discussions at our next conference committee meeting. 
 
Representative Keiser: It was my understanding that the court had the authority to grant 
attorney’s fees, and that the court decided not to, therefore, it seems to me that granting of 
attorney’s fees is constitutional and that the legislature can act in that manner. If you would 
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have them check that, because in this case the court decided not to do something that was 
allowable, I’ve been told. 
 
Chair Unruh: Yes, I would imagine there was a reason for the courts determination there.  
Closed the conference committee meeting.  
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Chair Unruh: Opened the conference committee. All conferees were present.  
I have been instructed to get down to business, rather than negotiate; I have brought my final 
offer, amendments .03008 (Please see attachment #1). These include the language from 
the authorization of the land commissioner to perform the study that needs to be done to 
make the payments, and the timing of that as well as the authorization to do it. The changes 
requested by the Surveying Society on the definition of the ordinary high water mark 
(OHWM). The biggest piece there is the removal of that last sentence in the definition of the 
OHWM. There were a couple of other things. The rest of the changes were meaningful, but 
minor verbiage changes. The last section has been removed regarding the legal fees, and 
the repayment of those for a particular case. I was asked to provide some background on the 
constitutional aspect of that, please see attachment #2. I met with the Attorney General this 
morning to review everything, to make sure I was reading everything correctly. The two 
sections of the constitution are in both in article 4, section 13, that is highlighted as a special 
law, this would qualify as a special law; and also in article 10, section 18, that is what we are 
all familiar with, known as the gifting clause. We cannot as a state make donations to an 
individual.  
 
Representative Martinson: Thank you for bringing the constitutional material. I would make 
the contention that it is not state money, that that money that has been set aside is royalty 
money. The state had a pretty good idea that they were going to get caught stealing the 
mineral rights, and they did. They were smart enough to withhold royalty payments. That is 
not state money. That money is being held in trust so that when it is finally determined, that 
the money paid off is not state money. In the case of the people who initiated the lawsuit, 
theirs is basically settled, it’s a question of getting them paid subject to the Marvin Nelson 
lawsuit. I contend it’s not state money. It isn’t state money, it’s being held in trust for the 



Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee  
SB 2211 
4/23/19 
Page 2  
   

minerals, it would be state money if the supreme court would have ruled in favor of the state, 
but they didn’t. 
 
Senator Schaible: I move the House recede from its amendment, and we further amend. 
Senator Piepkorn: I second.  
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion fails 3-3-0. 
 
Representative Martinson: Do you have any thoughts on my contention that it’s not state 
money, and that it can certainly be used for legal fees? 
 
Chair Unruh: I find it difficult to identify a scenario where I think it is appropriate for the 
legislative branch to direct that legal fees on a case that hasn’t been finalized yet, be paid. 
That is not our role as a legislature. You could make the argument that those are not state 
dollars, certainly. But I have had multiple lawyers say that they don’t understand how they 
could defend that section of the bill. I am not a lawyer; I do trust those that I have talked to in 
that regard.  
 
Representative Martinson: Would you go back to those lawyers, and ask them, that if it 
was not state money, if then they could defend it?  
 
Chair Unruh: I would.  
 
Representative Martinson: Basically, all we are doing is giving the money back to them that 
was taken from them with legal fees. I have a hard time thinking that when the state takes 
something from somebody, and it costs them $450,000 to get it back, why there is not some 
liability to pay them. I don’t understand the reasoning of the Senate, why they don’t think the 
legal fees should be paid. 
 
Chair Unruh: To be clear, it is not the position of the Senate that these people should not be 
getting the legal fees back. I think the majority of us would agree that they absolutely should, 
but we also agree that that is the role of the courts, and not the role of the legislature.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: You’ve used the phrase, ‘the state stole the money, the land, the rights,’ 
that statement implies that it is the state’s money. If you say the state took the money, well, 
it must be the state’s money. It has to belong to somebody; from my point of view it is the 
state’s money, as Chair Unruh has said, I don’t think anybody is opposed to if that money 
eventually ends up with that person, but it is a matter of process and procedure. 
 
Representative Martinson: What I should have said, they stole the minerals. These people 
have leased those mineral acres since the early 1950s, it was only seven or eight years ago 
that the state said those are ours. Then the state said that if it’s going to be in dispute, then 
we will put the money aside in trust. I would say that they probably didn’t take the money, but 
they took the minerals and they got the royalties. It’s the royalties that are being held in trust. 
 
Representative Keiser: I am not an attorney, but in section 18, as I read it, the highlighted 
portion, ‘Neither state nor any political subdivision shall loan or give its credit to, or make a 
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donation to, or in aid of any individual, association etc.’ What we are saying in our position, 
this is neither a loan nor aid, it’s a debt that the state owes. Like interest or any other debt on 
a bond, the state does in fact own it. We were more than willing to eventually go along with 
removing it last session, but given the complications that I’ve stated before that have arisen 
here, we now are causing these people to not receive this money for up whatever period of 
time it takes, hypothetically two years, we all owe interest on that money. We owe them their 
legal fees, and we’re not asking for the interest, but they didn’t screw up, we did. We thought 
we had it handled, but we didn’t handle it to where that money could in fact be distributed, 
from my perspective, I define it as a debt the state owes that the state owes these people, 
not as a loan or a gift. 
 
Chair Unruh: When the court system goes through looking at what gets reimbursed 
regarding legal fees, they take a very close look at what those expenses are, and I know we 
as a state have looked at that. Individual line items are parsed out, that is a very detailed 
process that the court systems go through. I assume they do their best to be just in that 
decision on what is supposed to be reimbursed and what is not. Why are we so afraid in this 
case that the courts won’t do the right thing and pay back those fees, which should and would 
be paid back in any other situation? 
 
Representative Keiser:  If it is the right thing, we have a fiduciary responsibility as a state 
to do it, regardless of what the courts determine. 
 
Senator Piepkorn: There is the possibility of this setting a bad precedent for similar cases 
in paying someone in advance of a final determination by the courts. 
 
Representative Martinson: Would you agree that we could have an amendment here that 
says in the event that through the whole process they actually do own the minerals, that then 
we would pay the legal fees? After the process is complete? 
 
Senator Piepkorn: I’m not sure, I’d have to learn more about that.  
 
Chair Unruh: Seeing no other discussion, we are adjourned.  



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

SB 2211 
4/24/2019 

Job Number 34967 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☒ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Marne Johnson 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the determination of the ordinary high water mark; relating to sovereign lands, 
determining the ordinary high water mark, and the ownership of mineral rights of land subject 
to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams; to provide a contingent 
appropriation; to provide for application; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments  

 
Chair Unruh: Opened the conference committee, all members were present.  
 
Representative Keiser: With great consternation, because we believe it is such a right thing 
to do, we can agree to removing the reimbursement for legal fees. The case is still in the 
court, hopefully the court will do the right thing, we’ll leave it up to them to do that. The other 
issue for us it is that it was proposed to strike that last line on the definition of ordinary high 
water mark (OHWM). That was the OHWM line must be continuous in elevation or gently 
sloping following the gradient of the river. On the hearing on the House side, we had placed 
that in the bill, we had testimony from the surveyors group, they identified their concerns with 
putting that in the definition, but we saw it as reasonable, defensible, and appropriate, so we 
don’t support removing that part in the amendment. If you read the language, it makes 
common sense, you don’t get situations where immediately across the river there were two 
different definitions of OWHM. 
 
Chair Unruh: Can you give us a history of where this definition of OHWM came from? I know 
we have one in admin code, I know there’s been a lot of case law, specifically to that last 
sentence; where did that come from? Is it part of case law? 
 
Representative Keiser:  On the House, we provided an original definition, and modified it 
based on input received. This definition is a result of the hearing process we had and the 
input we received on what was acceptable and not acceptable. Especially to the surveyors, 
they didn’t like that last sentence, but we disagreed with them, so we incorporated it in. It isn’t 
based on case law, it’s based on the input provided, definitions in other states, and a variety 
of sources. 
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Senator Piepkorn: Not having been in on the meeting; on one side you have the surveyors, 
and their history and their profession; do you recall, other than other states, who was the 
input from when you arrived at this definition which you just described as defensible and so 
on? 
 
Representative Keiser: We had input from private individuals that testified, engineers, 
surveyors, the Water Commission, as well as all interested parties.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Those are the parties who gave you the information for you to form this 
definition.  
 
Chair Unruh:  I have grabbed our testimony from when the bill was introduced. I’ve got a 
document from the US Army Corps of Engineers, on the benefits and limitations of hydraulic 
modeling for OHWM delineation and it’s got a couple of good things in here. I’d like to spend 
a little more time looking at that, before I agree to this change.  
 
Representative Keiser:  In section 2, we did incorporate some of the concerns you raised 
initially, in terms of vegetation etc. These were the factors to be considered, in that we 
attempted to identify all of the factors that should be considered. These attempt to incorporate 
the concerns of many of the groups who testified. There is, when considering vegetation, 
concern there, hay land, subsection 2, when feasible, direct hydrologic and hydraulic 
measurements from the stream gauge data, the elevation data etc., as well as secondary 
indicators. When those other indicators identified in 1 and 2 are not available, we provided 
three secondary indicators that can be considered. We have them in the bill. 
 
Chair Unruh: Yes, which is why I would prefer to take the elevation language out of the 
definition of OHWM. To look at it, in my real life, I am a certified wetland delineator for the 
US Army Corps of Engineers, these are not foreign concepts to me. I am struggling with that 
survey language, the elevation language. I’ve also struggled with section 2, but I’m willing to 
accept some of those. I am not sure of the other language right now.  
We will adjourn. 
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      Committee Clerk: Marne Johnson 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to the determination of the ordinary high water mark; relating to sovereign lands, 
determining the ordinary high water mark, and the ownership of mineral rights of land subject 
to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams; to provide a contingent 
appropriation; to provide for application; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 1 Attachment  

 
 
Chair Unruh: Opened the conference committee. All conferees were present.  
 
Representative Keiser: We have distributed .03009 (please see attachment #1) to you. 
They are very similar to .03008, there are two major areas of change. On the first page, under 
section 1, subsection 3, on definitions, is a somewhat different definition. It is similar to the 
.03008 version. On the second page, under subsection 2, four lines down the .03008 
amendment read ‘maps and statistical hydrological evidence may be considered.’ .03009 
reverts it back to the language that was in the bill, ‘must be considered when determining 
ordinary high water mark.’ This amendment deletes the request to refund the legal fees for 
those parties. The reason we feel ‘must be considered,’ whenever you say ‘may be 
considered,’ that means they don’t have to do anything, we would like them to consider these 
factors when they’re making their determination. That was the reason for must. Based on 
input that we received since our last meeting, according to some sources, this definition 
seems to be a little better than the one in .03008. Those are the parts of the amendment that 
are different than .03008. 
I move that the House recede from its amendments and amend as described in the 
amendment ending in .03009. 
 
Senator Schaible: I second. 
 
Chair Unruh: I’ve looked at these; I think they are satisfactory. 
 
A roll call vote was taken. 
Motion passes 6-0-0. 
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Senator Unruh and Representative Keiser will carry. 
 
Chair Unruh: Closed the conference committee.  
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Title . 

Prepared by the Legislat ive Counci l  staff for 
Senator Unruh 

Apri l 22, 201 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BI LL NO. 221 1  

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 677- 1 680 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 909- 1 91 1  of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bi l l  No. 221 1  
be amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  l ine 1 ,  after "enact" insert "sect ion 61 -33-01 . 1  and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, after "sect ions" insert "61 -33-01 and 61 -33. 1 -02, subdivision e of subsection 3 of 
sect ion 61 -33. 1 -03, sections" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3, after "61 -33. 1 -05" insert " ,  and 61 -33. 1 -07" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, after "to" insert "sovereign lands , determining the ordinary high water mark, and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 4, replace " inundated" with "subject to inundation" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 5, after "dams" insert " ;  to provide for appl ication; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  after l ine 6, insert : 

"SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 61 -33-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33-01 . Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requi res: 

1 .  "Board" means the sovere ign lands advisory board. 

2 .  "Board of university and school lands" means that entity created by section 
1 5-01 -01 . 

3 .  "Ordinary high water mark" means the continuous l ine along the banks of 
navigable rivers and lakes where the presence and action of waters of the 
navigable river or lake are so common and usual, and so long continued in 
al l ordinary years, as to mark upon the bank of a navigable river or lake a 
character distinct from that of the abutting upland . "  

4 .  "Sovere ign lands" means those areas , including beds and islands, lying 
within the ordinary high water mark of navigable lakes and streams. Lands 
establ ished to be riparian accretion or rel ict ion lands pursuant to sect ion 
47-06-05 are considered to be above the ordinary high water mark and are 
not sovere ign lands . 

4-.Q,, "State engineer" means the person appointed by the state water 
commission pursuant to section 61 -03-01 . 

Page No. 1 1 9.0598 .03008 



SECTION 2. Section 61 -33-0 1 . 1  of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as fol lows: 

61 -33-01 . 1 . Ordinary high water mark determination - Factors to be 
considered . 

The state engineer shal l  maintain ordinary high water mark del ineation 
guidel ines consistent with this section. 

1,. When determining the ordinary high water mark for del ineating the 
boundary of sovereign lands, vegetation and soi ls analysis must be 
considered the primary physical indicators. When considering vegetation, 
the ordinary high water mark is the l ine below which the presence and 
action of the water is frequent enough to prevent the growth of terrestrial 
vegetation or restrict vegetation growth to predominately aquatic species. 
General ly, land, including hay land, where the high and continuous 
presence of water has destroyed the value of the land for agricultural 
purposes must be deemed within the ordinary high water mark. 

2. Hydrological and hydraul ic measurements from stream gauge data, 
elevation data, ordinary water flow records, high resolution l ight detection 
and ranging systems, prior elevation and survey maps, and statistical 
hydrological evidence may be considered when determining the ordinary 
high water mark. The state engineer shal l establ ish appropriate guidel ines, 
technical standards, and other criteria, inc luding use of l ight detection and 
ranging systems or other future technological advancements, as 
necessary, for conducting hydrologic and hydraul ic model ing as stated by 
this section. 

� Secondary physical indicators, including l itter, debris, or staining, may be 
considered to supplement the analysis of the ordinary high water mark 
investigation but may not supersede primary physical indicators unless 
primary physical indicators are deemed inadequate or inconclusive. 
Physical indicators directly affected by influent non-navigable tributaries, 
adjoining water bodies, or wetlands may not be used to del ineate the 
sovereign land boundary of a navigable body of water. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 61 -33. 1 -02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33. 1 -02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation by 
Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovereign land mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan M issouri basin project dams extends only 
to the historical M issouri r iverbed channel up to the ordinary high water mark. The state 
holds no claim or tit le to any minerals above the ordinary high water mark of the 
historical M issouri r iverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan 
M issouri basin project dams, except for orig inal grant lands acquired by the state under 
federal law and any minerals acquired by the state through purchase, foreclosure, or 
other written conveyance. M ineral ownership of the r iverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan M issouri basin project dams which are 
located within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Berthold reservation and Standing 
Rock Indian reservation is control led by other law and is excepted from this section. 
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SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subdivision e of subsection 3 of section 61 -33. 1 -03 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

e. Subsection 31, of section 61 -33-0 1 and section 47-06-05, wh ich 
provide al l  accretions are presumed to be above the ordinary high 
water mark and are not sovereign lands . Accreted lands may be 
determined to be with in  the ordinary h igh water mark of the h istorical 
Missouri riverbed channel based on clear and convincing evidence. 
Areas of low-lying and flat lands where the ordinary h igh water mark 
may be impracticable to determine due to inconclusive aerial 
photography or inconclusive vegetation analysis must be presumed to 
be above the ordinary h igh water mark and owned by the riparian 
landowner. " 

Page 3, after l ine 26, insert : 

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 61 -33. 1 -07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33. 1 -07.  State engineer regulatory jurisdiction .  (Retroactive application -
See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state engineer to regulate the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel ,  minerals other than o i l  and gas, or  the waters of 
the state, provided the regulation does not affect ownership of o i l  and gas minerals in 
and under the riverbed or lands above the ordinary h igh water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams . 

SECTION 9. APPLICATION. Sections 1 and 2 of this Act do not apply to the 
ordinary high water mark study requi red for the h istorical Missouri riverbed channel in 
chapter 61 -33. 1 .  This Act does not affect or l imit the authority of the state engineer to 
regulate waters of this state. 

SECTION 1 0. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure. " 

Renumber accordingly 
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Title.06000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Keiser 

March 21, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2211 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1677-1680 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1909-1911 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2211 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "section 61-33-01.1 and" 

Page 1, line 2, remove "and" 

Page 1, line 3, after "sections" insert "61-33-01 and 61-33.1-02, subdivision e of subsection 3 of 
section 61-33.1-03, sections" 

Page 1, line 3, replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 3, after "61-33.1-05" insert ", and 61-33.1-07'' 

Page 1, line 4, after "to" insert "sovereign lands, determining the ordinary high water mark, and" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "inundated" with "subject to inundation" 

Page 1, line 5, after "dams" insert "; to provide for application; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 61-33-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33-01 . Definitions . 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires: 

1. "Board" means the sovereign lands advisory board. 

2. "Board of university and school lands" means that entity created by section 
15-01-01. 

3. "Ordinary high water mark" means that line below which the presence and 
action of the water upon the land is continuous enough so as to prevent 
the growth of terrestrial vegetation, destroy its value for agricultural 
purposes by preventing the growth of what may be termed an ordinary 
agricultural crop, including hay, or restrict its growth to predominantly 
aquatic species. 

4. "Sovereign lands" means those areas, including beds and islands, lying 
within the ordinary high water mark of navigable lakes and streams. Lands 
established to be riparian accretion or reliction lands pursuant to section 
47-06-05 are considered to be above the ordinary high water mark and are 
not sovereign lands. 

4'-5. "State engineer" means the person appointed by the state water 
commission pursuant to section 61-03-01. 
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SECTION 2. Section 61-33-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as fol lows: 

61 -33-01 . 1 . Ordinary high water mark determination - Factors to be 
considered. 

The state engineer shal l maintain ordinary high water mark delineation 
guidelines consistent with this section . 

.L When determining the ordinary high water mark for delineating the 
boundary of sovereign lands, vegetation and soils analysis must be 
considered the primary physical indicators. When considering vegetation, 
the ordinary high water mark is the line below which the presence and 
action of the water is frequent enough to prevent the growth of terrestrial 
vegetation or restrict vegetation growth to predominately aquatic species. 
General ly, land, including hay land, where the high and continuous 
presence of water has destroyed the value of the land for agricultural 
purposes must be deemed within the ordinary high water mark. 

2. When feasible, direct hydrological and hydraulic measurements from 
stream gauge data, elevation data, historic records of water flow, high 
resolution light detection and ranging systems, prior elevation and survey 
maps, and statistical hydrological evidence must be considered when 
determining the ordinary high water mark. The state engineer shal l  
establish appropriate guidelines, technical standards, and other criteria, 
including use of light detection and ranging systems or other future 
technological advancements. as necessary, for conducting hydrologic and 
hydraulic modeling required by this section. 

3. Secondary physical indicators, including litter, debris, or staining, may be 
considered to supplement the analysis of the ordinary high water mark 
investigation but may not supersede primary physical indicators unless 
primary physical indicators are deemed inadequate or inconclusive. 
Physical indicators directly affected by influent non-navigable tributaries. 
adjoining water bodies, or wetlands may not be used to delineate the 
sovereign land boundary of a navigable body of water. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33. 1 -02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation by 
Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovereign land mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams extends only 
to the historical Missouri riverbed channel up to the ordinary high water mark. The state 
holds no claim or title to any minerals above the ordinary high water mark of the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan 
Missouri basin project dams, except for original grant lands acquired by the state under 
federal law and any minerals acquired by the state through purchase, foreclosure, or 
other written conveyance. Mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams which are 
located within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Berthold reservation and Standing 
Rock Indian reservation is control led by other law and is excepted from this section. 
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SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subdivision e of subsection 3 of section 61-33.1-03 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

e. Subsection a1_ of section 61-33-01 and section 47-06-05, which 
provide all accretions are presumed to be above the ordinary high 
water mark and are not sovereign lands. Accreted lands may be 
determined to be within the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel based on clear and convincing evidence. 
Areas of low-lying and flat lands where the ordinary high water mark 
may be impracticable to determine due to inconclusive aerial 
photography or inconclusive vegetation analysis must be presumed to 
be above the ordinary high water mark and owned by the riparian 
landowner."  

Page 3, after line 26, insert: 

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61 -33. 1 -07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction. (Retroactive application 
See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state engineer to regulate the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel, minerals other than oil and gas, or the waters of 
the state, provided the regulation does not affect ownership of oil and gas minerals in 
and under the riverbed or lands above the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams. 

SECTION 9. APPLICATION. Sections 1 and 2 of this Act do not apply to the 
ordinary high water mark study required for the historical Missouri riverbed channel in 
chapter 61-33.1. This Act does not affect or limit the authority of the state engineer to 
regulate waters of this state. 

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Insert LC: 19.0598.03009 
Senate Carrier: Unruh 
House Carrier: Keiser 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2211, as engrossed : Your conference committee (Sens. Unruh, Schaible, Piepkorn and 

Reps. Keiser, Martinson, Porter) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the 
House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1677-1680, adopt amendments as 
follows, and place SB 2211 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1677-1680 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1909-1911 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate B ill No. 2211 
be amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "section 61-33-01.1 and" 

Page 1, line 2, remove "and" 

Page 1, line 3, after "sections" insert "61-33-01 and 61-33.1-02, subdivision e of 
subsection 3 of section 61-33.1-03, sections" 

Page 1, line 3, replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 3, after "61-33.1-05" insert ", and 61-33.1-07" 

Page 1, line 4, after "to" insert "sovereign lands, determining the ordinary high water mark, 
and" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "inundated" with "subject to inundation" 

Page 1, line 5, after "dams" insert "; to provide for application; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61-33-01. Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires: 

1. "Board" means the sovereign lands advisory board. 

2. "Board of university and school lands" means that entity created by 
section 15-01-01. 

3. "Ordinary high water mark" means that line below which the presence 
and action of the water upon the land is continuous enough so as to 
prevent the growth of terrestrial vegetation, destroy its value for 
agricultural purposes by preventing the growth of what may be termed an 
ordinary agricultural crop, including hay. or restrict its growth to 
predominantly aquatic species. 

4. "Sovereign lands" means those areas, including beds and islands, lying 
with in the ordinary high water mark of navigable lakes and streams. 
Lands established to be riparian accretion or reliction lands pursuant to 
section 47-06-05 are considered to be above the ordinary high water 
mark and are not sovereign lands. 

4.-.5.,. "State engineer" means the person appointed by the state water 
commission pursuant to section 61-03-01. 

( 1 )  DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_cfcomrep_74_007 
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Insert LC: 19.0598.03009 
Senate Carrier: Unruh 
House Carrier: Keiser 

SECTION 2. Section  6 1 -33-0 1 . 1  of the North Dakota Centu ry Code is 
created and enacted as fol lows: 

61-33-01.1. Ord inary high water mark determination - Factors to be 
considered. 

The state engineer shal l  mainta in ord inary h igh water mark del ineation 
gu idel ines consistent with this section . 

.1. When determin ing the ord inary h igh water mark for de l ineati ng the 
boundary of sovereign lands, vegetation and soi ls analysis must be 
considered the primary physical ind icators. When cons idering vegetation, 
the ord inary h igh water mark is the l ine below which the presence and 
action of the water is frequent enough to prevent the growth of terrestria l  
vegetation or restrict vegetation growth to predominately aquatic species. 
Genera l ly, land, inc lud ing hay land, where the h igh and continuous 
presence of water has destroyed the value of the land for agricu ltu ra l  
purposes must be deemed with in  the ord inary h igh water mark. 

2 .  When feasib le, d i rect hydrological and hydrau l ic measurements from 
stream gauge data, elevation data, h istoric records of water flow, h igh 
resolut ion l ight detection and ranging systems, prior elevation and survey 
maps, and statistical hyd rologica l evidence must be considered when 
determin i ng the ord inary h igh water mark. The state engineer shal l  
estab l ish appropriate gu idel ines, techn ical standards, and other criteria, 
inc lud ing use of l ight detect ion and ranging systems or other future 
technological advancements, as necessary, for conduct ing hydrologic 
and hydrau l ic model ing required by this section .  

� Secondary physical ind icators, inc lud ing l i tter, debris, or sta in ing, may be 
considered to supplement the analys is of the ord inary h igh water mark 
i nvestigation but may not supersede primary physical ind icators un less 
primary physical ind icators are deemed inadequate or inconclus ive . 
Physica l i nd icators d i rectly affected by influent non-navigable tributaries. 
adjo in i ng water bodies. or wetlands may not be used to de l ineate the 
sovere ign land boundary of a navigable body of water. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 6 1 -33. 1 -02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61-33.1-02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation 
by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovere ign land m ineral ownersh ip of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to i nundation by P ick-S loan M issouri basin project dams extends 
on ly to the h istorica l M issouri riverbed channel  up to the ord inary h igh water mark. 
The state holds no claim or title to any minerals above the ord inary h igh water mark 
of the h istorical M issouri riverbed channe l  inundatedsubject to inundation by 
P ick-Sloan M issouri bas in  project dams, except for orig inal  g rant lands acqu i red by 
the state u nder federa l  law and any m inerals acquired by the state through purchase, 
foreclosure ,  or  other written conveyance. Mineral ownersh ip  of the riverbed 
segments inundatedsubject to i nundation by Pick-S loan M issouri bas in project dams 
which are located with i n  the exterior boundaries of the Fort Berthold reservation and 
Stand ing Rock I nd ian reservation is contro l led by other law and is excepted from this 
section .  

SECTION 4 .  AMENDMENT. Subd ivision e o f  subsection 3 o f  section 
6 1 -33 . 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

( 1 )  DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 2 s_cfcomrep_74_007 



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 24, 2019 4:22PM 

Module ID: s_cfcomrep_74_007 

Insert LC: 19.0598.03009 
Senate Carrier: Unruh 
House Carrier: Keiser 

e. Subsection 31 of section 6 1 -33-0 1 and section 47-06-05, which 
provide all accretions are presumed to be above the ordinary high 
water mark and are not sovereign lands. Accreted lands may be 
determined to be within the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
M issouri riverbed channel based on clear and convincing evidence. 
Areas of low-lying and flat lands where the ordinary high water mark 
may be impracticable to determine due to inconclusive aerial 
photography or inconclusive vegetation analysis must be presumed 
to be above the ordinary high water mark and owned by the riparian 
landowner. " 

Page 3, after line 26, insert: 

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 6 1 -33. 1 -07 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61-33.1-07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction. (Retroactive 
application - See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state engineer to regulate 
the historical M issouri riverbed channel, minerals other than oil and gas, or the 
waters of the state, provided the regulation does not affect ownership  of oil and gas 
minerals in and under the riverbed or lands above the ordinary high water mark of 
the historical M issouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan 
Missouri basin project dams. 

SECTION 9. APPLICATION. Sections 1 and 2 of this Act do not apply to the 
ordinary high water mark study requi red for the historical M issouri riverbed channel 
in chapter 6 1 -33. 1 .  This Act does not affect or limit the authority of the state engineer 
to regulate waters of this state. 

SECTION 10. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure."  

Renumber accordingly 

Engrossed SB 221 1  was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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Senate Energy and Natu ra l  Resources Committee 
January 3 1 , 20 1 9 
Honorab le Senator Jessica Un ru h ,  Cha i r  
Senate B i l l  22 1 1 
Testimony by Senator Brad Bekkedah l  

Cha i r  U n ruh  and Committee , 

Brad Bekkedah l ,  Senator from D istrict 1 here to i ntroduce a critica l  
b i l l  re lative to m inera ls  development and d isposit ion  of payments 
add ressed last sess ion i n  Senate B i l l  2 1 34 .  Th is b i l l  has been 
requested by The Department of Trust Lands ,  wh ich i s  the 
adm in istrative arm of and serves under the Board of Trust Lands .  
The Board is  comprised of the Governor, Secretary of  State , 
Attorney Genera l , State Treasurer ,  and the Superi ntendent of Pub l ic  
I nstruction . The Department' s primary responsib i l ity i s  manag i ng 
the Common Schools Trust Fund and 1 3  other permanent 
education trust funds .  The beneficia ries of the trust funds incl ude 
loca l school d istricts , various co l leges and un ivers i ties ,  and other 
i nstitutions i n  North Dakota . The Department manages fou r  
add it iona l  funds :  the Strateg ic I nvestment and  I mprovements Fund , 
the Coal Deve lopment Trust Fund , the Capito l Bu i l d i ng  Fund , and 
the I nd ian Cu ltu ra l  Education Trust . 

The 65th Leg is lat ive Assemb ly's adopt ion of Senate B i l l  2 1 34 ,  
cod ified as N . D . C . C .  ch . 6 1 -33 . 1 ,  prov ided for the  p rocess for 
determ in i ng the ord i nary h igh-water mark of the h i storica l  M issouri 
R iverbed channe l . Th is  b i l l  was set up  to create a defi ned process 
for retu rn i ng an estimated $ 1 87 m i l l ion i n  m inera l  payments 
rece ived by the State that , i n  some cases , may have be longed to 
private cit izens who reta ined the i r  m i nera l  rights when the U . S .  
Army Corps of Eng i neers bought the land for Lake Sakakawea . 

J/. I 
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The North Dakota I nd ustria l  Commission completed the survey of 
the 83 m i le stretch of the M issou ri R iver and I ndustria l  Commiss ion 
adopted these fi nd i ngs on September 27,  20 1 8 ,  de l i neati ng the 
h istorica l M issou ri R iverbed chan nel . 

The Department of Trust Lands is  cu rrent ly procu ri ng an 
eng i neeri ng fi rm to prov ide the necessary data to i mplement 
acreage adjustments ,  lease bonus and roya lty refu nds ,  and 
payments as may be necessary .  The Department is  unab le to 
re lease funds without th is  add it ional  i nformation . An extens ion of 
the time frame as prov ided i n  Senate B i l l  22 1 1 wi l l  a l low for the 
Department to rece ive the necessary requ i rements and comply with 
N . D .C .C .  ch . 6 1 . 33 . 1 . 
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I t  is  ant ic i pated the eng i neeri ng contract wi l l  be awarded on May 1 ,  
201 9 and wi l l  be comp leted as soon as poss ib le .  U pon complet ion 
of the of the su rvey , wh ich is not dupl i cati ng efforts a l ready 
completed by the N D I C ,  the Board of Un iversity and School Lands 
wi l l  approve the acreage adjustments . The Department of Trust 
Lands wi l l  then be properly positioned to re lease funds based upon 
these acreage adjustments . Ensu ring  adequate time is  ava i lab le for 
the eng i neeri ng fi rm and for Board review is  necessary to the 
enhance the i nteg rity of the Wenck Study and ensure leg is lative 
i ntent was fo l l owed with S B  2 1 34 .  Passage of th is  b i l l  wi l l  bring  
certa i nty to d isposit ion of  roya lty revenues cu rrently he ld in  
suspense , and concl us ion to many areas of content ion that sti l l  exist 
re lative to these m i nera l  acres , as wel l  as a l l ow the i ndustry to 
conti nue to deve lop areas they have avoided due  to th is issue .  
P lease recommend a Do Pass for Senate B i l l  22 1 1 .  Thank you ,  
Madam Cha i rman ,  and I a m  happy to stand for any questions .  
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PROPOSED AM ENDM ENTS TO SENATE B I LL NO. 2211 

Page 1, l i n e  1 ,  after "to" i n se rt "create and  enact a new subsect ion to sect ion 61-33. 1-03 of the 

No rth Da kota Centu ry Code ;  and to" 

Page 1, afte r l i n e  4, i nse rt :  

SECTION 1. A new subsect ion t o  sect ion 61-33 . 1-03 of t h e  North Dakota Centu ry 

Code is  created a nd  enacted as fo l l ows: 

Upon adopt ion  of the fi n a l  review fin d i ngs by the i ndustri a l  commi ss ion, the 

boa rd of u n ive rsity and school l ands  may contract with a qua l ified engineer i ng 

and  su rveyi ng fi rm to a n a lyze the  fi n a l  review fi nd i ngs and  determ ine  the a creage 

on  a qua rter-qua rter bas i s  o r  govern ment l ot bas is  a bove and  be low the o rd i n a ry 

h igh water ma rk as  de l i neated by the fi n a l  review fi nd i ngs of the i ndustri a l  

com m iss i o n .  The acreage dete rm i n at ion i f  fi n a l  upon approva l by t he  board . 

Page 1, l i n e  8, overstr i ke "fi n a l  review fi n d i ngs" and  i nsert immed i ately thereafter "acreage 

determ i n at ion"  

Page 1, l i ne  8 ,  overst r i ke " i ndu str ia l "  

Page 1, l i ne 9, overstr ike "comm iss ion" and i nsert i mmed i ate ly thereafter "boa rd of un ive rsity 

a n d  schoo l  l a nd s" 

Page 1, l i ne  20, overst r i ke "fi n a l  review fi nd i ngs" a nd  i n se rt i m med iately the reafter "acreage 

determ i n at ion" 

Page 1, l i ne 20 ,  overst r i ke " i n d ustri a l  com m iss ion" and  i n sert immed iately thereafter "boa rd of 

u n ive rsity and schoo l  l a nds" 

Page 1, l i n e  21, remove "may contract with a qua l ified"  

Page 1 ,  remove l i n es 22 th rough 24 

Page 2, remove l i n e  1 

Page 2, l i n e  2, remove "boa rd . After approvi ng the  acreage determ inat ion, the boa rd" 

Ren u m ber  accord i ng ly 

Sf!; 22-I I 
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llnTRUST LANDS 
INVESTING FOR EDUCATION 

TESTIMONY OF JODI SMITH 
Commissioner 

North Dakota Department of Trust Lands 

Senate Bi l l  221 1 

Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
January 3 1 , 201 9  

Jodi A. Smith, Commissioner 

Chairman Unruh and members of the Senate Energy and Natura l  Resources Committee, I am Jodi Smith , 
the Commissioner and Secretary for the Board of Un iversity and School Lands (Board) .  I am here to 
testify in support of Senate Bi l l  22 1 1 .  

The Department of Trust Lands (Department) is the administrative arm of the Board , serving under the 
d irection and authority of the Board . The Board is comprised of the Governor, Secretary of State, Attorney 
Genera l ,  State Treasurer, and Superintendent of Publ ic Instruction . The Department's primary 
responsibi l ity is managing the Common Schools Trust Fund and 1 3  other permanent educational trust 
funds. The beneficiaries of the trust funds include local school d istricts , various colleges and universities, 
and other institutions in North Dakota . The Department manages four additional funds: the Strategic 
I nvestment and Improvements Fund,  the Coal Development Trust Fund, the Capitol Bu i ld ing Fund , and 
the I ndian Cu ltural Education Trust. 

The Department also administers the responsibi l ities outlined in the Un iform Unclaimed Property Act, 
N . D.C .C .  ch . 47-30. 1 .  In this role the Department col lects "unclaimed property" (uncashed checks , 
unused bank accounts , etc . ) ,  and processes owners' claims. This property is held in  permanent trust for 
owners to cla im,  with the revenue from the investment of the property benefit ing the Common Schools 
Trust Fund . 

Additionally, the Department operates the Energy I nfrastructure and Impact Office (E I IO) ,  wh ich provides 
financial support to political subd ivisions that are affected by energy development. Assistance is provided 
through both the oi l and gas impact grant program and the coal impact loan program.  The E I IO  also 
d istributes energy and flood grants carried over from prior biennia .  

Overview 

The North Dakota's Constitution and Century Code designate the Board to manage state-owned minerals 
and the oi l , gas and related hydrocarbons with in  the beds of the State's navigable waters . On behalf of 
the State, the Board oversees the Strateg ic Investment and Improvements Fund (SI I F) which col lects the 
revenues from sovereign minerals. The Board has had this management responsibi l ity since at least 
1 977. 
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The 65th Legislative Assembly's adoption of Senate Bill 2134 (SB 2134 ) ,  codified as N.D .C.C. ch. 61-
33.1, provided for the determination of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) for a certain stretch of the 
Missouri River . The bill directed the North Dakota Industrial Commission (ND IC) to review the delineation 
of the OHWM of the US Army Corp of Engineers (USAGE) survey segments from the northern boundary 
of the Fort Berthold Indian reservation to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34 , Township  153 North, 
Range 102 West, McKenzie , Mountrail, and Williams Counties, North Dakota. 

As you may be aware , the Ordinary High Water Mark of the Missouri River Bed review as prepared by 
Wenck Associates, I nc. (Review) was presented to the ND I C  on April 17, 2018. Thereafter, the ND IC 
issued its Order of the Commission , Order No. 29129, approving the Review on September 27, 2018. 
I nformation concerning the Review can be found on the Department of Mineral Resources' website. 

Throughout the Review process, the Department did not comment on the OHWM definition provided in 
the Review, data compilation methods, methodology, legal research conducted to determine clear and 
convincing evidence standards, or other technical comments relating to the specific boundary 
delineations. Rather, the Department's comments focused on the usability of the Review for purposes 
of "implementing any acreage adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as 
may be necessary relating to state-issued oil and gas leases" , N. D.C.C. § 61-33.1-04(2)(a) , specifically: 
(1) public domain tracts; (2) omitted data and variables; and (3) alignment of data. For purposes of 
example , the following provides concerns the Department raised which impact its ability to proceed with 
the Board's directives under N .D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1: 

Public Domain Tracts 

N.D.C .C .  § 61-33.1-06 states :  

Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the contrary, the ordinary high water mark 
of the historical Missouri riverbed channel abutting non-patented public domain lands 
owned by the United States must be determined by the branch of cadastral study of the 
United States bureau of land management in accordance with federal law. 

A public domain tract is land owned by the Federal Government since statehood or land that has never 
left the public ownership. Of the estimated 7,300 public domain acres, N. D.C.C. § 61-33.1-06 defers 
determination of the OHWM to the branch of cadastral study of the United States bureau of land 
management in accordance with federal law. The Department's interpretation of N.D.C.C. § 61-33.1-06 
is that the OHWM of the historical Missouri riverbed channel abutting the public domain tracts was to 
have been established at statehood or by the Supplemental Plats prepared by "the branch of cadastral 
study of the United States bureau of land management . . . ." Id. These Supplemental Plats were 
prepared for the purpose of delineating the boundaries of public domain oil and gas interests in 
determining the acreage of the areas affected by the movement of the Missouri River prior to the 
inundation of Lake Sakakawea. 

The Department's initial analysis of the Review, which included comparison to the Supplemental Plats, 
determined Wenck Associates, Inc .  (Wenck) :  (1) did not identify in its OHWM Delineation Results Tables 
2a and 2b (Tables) which tracts are deemed public domain, and (2) delineated the OHWM through public 
domain tracts, thus affecting the State's total estimated acreage presented in the Review . 
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Examples of the OHWM delineated through public domain tracts are as follows: 

T 1 53- R99 Sec. 34; T 1 52-R99 Sec. 6 - Exhibit A 
T 1 53-R98 Sec. 1 1  - Exhibit B 
T 1 53-R98 Sec. 2 1  & 28 - Exhibit C 

Omitted Data and Variables 

Through the Department's initial analysis of the Review, the Department found that relevant river acreage 
data is missing from the Tables which may lead to inaccurate conclusions. The rows of the Tables titled 
BLM River Corridor appear to provide an overall acreage for the riverbed, but do not identify the acreage 
for specific quarter-quarter sections. The Review does not fully allocate acreages above or below the 
OHWM, thus preventing the Department from calculating the number of acres within each section. For 
the Department to implement acreage adjustments as required under N.D.C.C. ch. 6 1 -33. 1 , the 
Department will need this data to be provided through a contract with an independent engineering firm. 
The Department will also need accretion data attributable to riparian or upland landowners within each 
quarter-quarter section. Without this data, the Board cannot accurately "implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to 
state-issued oil and gas leases. "  N.D.C.C. § 6 1 -33.1 -04(2)(a). 

Examples of areas with missing data include :  

T 1 53-R99 Sec. 27 - Exhibit D 
T1 54-R96 Sec. 25 - Exhibit E 

Alignment of Data 

Significant Digit-Decimal Point 

The Department requested the columns of the Tables be brought out to at least two decimal points to 
mirror how land is denoted in the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Master Title Plats (Master Title 
Plats) or Public Land Survey System (PLSS). No changes were made concerning this request. Currently, 
the Tables only provide one decimal point. The rounding of acreage could result in a significant acreage 
change for the State and fee owners. Without the additional information, the Department would be forced 
to make assumptions on acreage adjustments. 

Total Acres - Tables 2a and 2b 

The Department requested additional information regarding Wenck's determination of "Total Acres" as 
presented in the second column of the Tables, as that information is not clearly defined in the Review. In 
many instances, it appears acreage in a quarter-quarter has increased or decreased with no explanation 
of where that acreage went or where it was added from. The Department sought additional information 
regarding the acreage depicted throughout the Tables as it is not consistent with the Master Title Plats 
by which the Department and industry's spacing unit boundaries have been determined. That information 
was not made available to the Department. 

p�.3 
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Legal Descriptions 

Many of the legal descriptions of the tracts of land along the historical Missouri riverbed channel are 
incorrectly labeled. The Review disregards pre-established government lots that were created per the 
original Master Title Plats . Instead, in many instances, the Review refers to government lots by their 
location within the section. 

Furthermore , the Review protracts quarter-quarters both in riparian areas and through accreted lands. 
This does not protect the interests of the upland mineral owners, both in terms of their rights to the 
shoreline and patented area. Examples of possible inaccurate legal descriptions are: 

T153-R93W Sec. 20 - Exhibit F 
T153-R93W Sec. 26- Exhibit G 
T153-R94W Sec. 3 & 4 ;  T154-R94 Sec. 34 - Exhibit H 
T153-R99 Sec. 36 - Exhibit I 

In response to comments, NDIC's September 27 , 2018 Order of the Commission, Order No. 29129, found 
among other things that: 

1. " [T]he Wenck Study was not intended to provide accurate acreage allocations for property 
transfer which is outside the scope of the legislation; the data sets provided to Wenck for 
use in calculating acreages represent the most efficient method for determination of areas 
necessary for decisions by the [NDIC] ; no land surveying was done nor contracted to be done in 
the course of [the Wenck] study." Order at 4 .  

2 .  " [T]he cost to complete the necessary research and surveys to apportion property significantly 
exceeds the appropriated funds." Id. 

3. " [A]dequate documentation and data for parties to determine how interests might be 
impacted were provided in the Wenck Study and subsequent communications." Id. 

N . D.C.C. § 61 -33.1-04(2)(a) provides that upon the adoption of the final review findings by the NDIC: 

The board of university and school lands shall begin to implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds,  and payment demands as may be 
necessary relating to state-issued oil and gas leases. The board shall complete the 
adjustments, refunds , and payment demands within two years after the date of 
adoption of the final review findings . 

At this  time , the Department does not have the information to determine the exact acreage adjustments 
required to release any collected bonus and royalty proceeds held by the Board. In order for the 
Department to fully satisfy its requirements under SB 2134, codified at N. D.C .C .  ch. 61-33.1, the 
Department will need to contract with an engineering firm to analyze the Review and the PLSS maps. 
Utilizing GIS, the Review's shapefile can be imported and overlaid with the BLM Master Title Plats to 
break down acreage above and below the Review's OHWM determination coordinates on a quarter­
quarter or government lot basis. However , because the State issued its oil and gas leases on a quarter 
section basis, if the OHWM of the river runs through any part of a particular quarter section, the 
Department needs the contracted engineering firm to identify: 

1. The amount of acreage in each quarter section that would be sovereign lands below the 
OHWM and subject to State lease (based on a quarter section) ;  

# }  
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2. Acreage above the OHWM in each quarter-quarter section or government lot owned by 
upland owners to allow for more finite calculations; and 

3. Acreage allocations for accretions (where accretions are present) lying above the OHWM 
attributable to riparian tracts within each section. 

On December 17, 2018, the Board authorized the Commissioner to accept and review proposals for 
analysis and GIS services for property related to the OHWM Study of the historical Missouri riverbed 
channel prepared by Wenck Associates, Inc. A Request for Proposal ("RFP")  was issued on December 
17, 2018. The scope of the project is to verify the boundaries and to calculate the acreage of each PLSS 
section within the Project Area, broken down by quarter-quarter section or government lot above and 
below the OHWM as identified by NDIC through the Review pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 61-33.1-03. This 
includes the entire acreage of any PLSS section that is fully or partially included in the Project Area. The 
determination of the OHWM from the Review is assumed to be correct. 

The project would utilize all available data, records, and resources including the Review, the PLSS, BLM 
General Land Office (GLO) updated Master Title Plats (available at the BLM), original GLO Survey Plats 
(available at the North Dakota State Water Commission) , BLM field notes, and any other relevant data, 
records and resources. Where previous survey data is not available , lacking, or otherwise unusable ,  the 
engineering firm performing the project would be required to conduct the field work necessary to supply 
the necessary data to complete and/or verify accurate boundaries within the Project Area. 

Conclusion 

As the Department does not have complete information to proceed with acreage adjustments, lease 
bonus and royalty refunds, it is imperative that more time be allowed for additional data to be gathered 
and compiled. It is unknown the approximate amount of time that it may take an engineering firm to 
gather and compile the information. It is anticipated this information will be available after the proposals 
are received by the Department, which are due today, January 31, 2019, with a scheduled award date of 
May 1, 2019. This project will take time and is not an easy process. Allowing additional time for this to 
be completed will result in accurate computations and thereafter, accurate refund amounts. 

Once the engineering firm completes the work requested in the RFP, the Department will promptly begin 
updating records to satisfy the Board's duty under N.D .C.C. § 61-33.1-04(2)(a) . Unfortunately, this 
process will be time-consuming due to all that is required of both the engineering firm and the divisions 
within the Department. At this time , the most logical way to implement this project would be to review 
each parcel within each spacing unit. Each parcel will need to be reviewed for changes to the database ,  
Correction of Oil and Gas Leases will be prepared for execution, requests for refunds of bonus and 
royalties will be prepared, each well will need a new royalty management unit to ensure future royalties 
will be allocated to the correct trust, the Department's shapefiles will be updated, and the Department will 
need to track all documentation for each lease correction. 

Prior to any mailings or issuance of refunds appropriate documentation for each parcel requmng 
adjustments needs to be reviewed by the Department's Director of Minerals Management and the 
Revenue Compliance Division. Following review by the Commissioner, a refund authorization would be 
forwarded to the Accounting Division for submission. Once refunds are issued, Correction of Oil and Gas 
Lease documentation is mailed to the lessee of record based on the ownership records of the Department 
and the current operator. If the lessee fails to return an executed copy or cash the check, the Department 
will need to take additional steps . 

#3  
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Due to the failure of lessees to submit assignments for Department approval as required by Department 
policies or the lease, Department records do not always accurately reflect the current lessee of any given 
lease which could possibly impact the timeliness of the refunds . Refunds of bonus will be issued to the 
current lessee ,  based on the records of the Department and royalty payments will be returned to the 
current operator of each spacing unit . 

Senate Bill 2211 's provision to essentially start the clock upon the Board's approval of the acreage 
adjustment calculations is necessary to the implementation of acreage adjustments, lease bonus and 
royalty refunds. Within the 83 miles reviewed by Wenck, the Department has: 

• Approximately 511 active leases covering 44,700 acres; 
• 100 different working interest owners with potential refunds due based upon their proportionate 

interest of the leases; and 
• Interests in approximately 525 wells operated by 10 different companies. 

Barring delays due to legal challenges or unresponsive lessees, it is anticipated the Department could 
complete approximately 40 lease corrections each month, resulting in completion of more than 500 lease 
corrections within two years of the Board's adoption of the engineering firm's acreage adjustment 
calculations. 

The Department recognizes and appreciates the significant work of Wenck and the NDIC to produce the 
Review and recognizes it as the initial step in the process; however, additional work is needed to provide 
the Department with the necessary data to "implement any acreage adjustments, lease bonus and royalty 
refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to state-issued oil and gas leases. "  
N .D .C .C .  § 61-33.1-04(2)(a) .  The Department cannot complete the steps required under N.D.C.C.  ch. 
61-33.1 without this information. Extension of the time frames as provided in Senate Bill 2211 would 
allow for the Department to receive the necessary information to comply with the requirements of 
N.D.C .C .  ch. 61-33.1. 

I look forward to working with the committee on these issues and would be happy to answer any 
questions . 
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T153N, R99W Section 34 
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c::::J PLSS Government Lots 
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T153N, R98W Section 11  
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SENATE BILL NO. 2 122-Lakebed Minerals 

Senate Energy and Natural Resources Committee 

Testimony of Craig C. Smith 

January 3 1 ,  2019  

Chairman Unruh and members of  the Senate Energy & Natural Resources Committee, my name 
is Craig Smith. I am an attorney with the Crowley Fleck law firm in Bismarck practicing oil and 
gas law for the past 30  years . I 'm appearing today on behalf of the North Dakota Petroleum 
Council and in support of Senate Bill 2 1 22 .  

BACKGROUND 
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This Bill adds certain amendments to Senate Bill 2 1 34 enacted by the 20 1 7  Legislative Assembly 
and codified as Chapter 6 1 -3 3 . 1  of the Century Code relating to the ownership of mineral rights 
of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin proj ect dams. Prior to discussing the specifics of 
this Bill ,  a brief summary of Senate Bill No. 2 1 34 and the status of the Ordinary High Water Mark 
study may be appropriate . 

As you will recall, Senate Bill 2 1 34 was an exhaustive and dedicated effort that culminated in a 
comprehensive set of laws to establish the parameters and a thorough process for determining the 
historical Missouri riverbed Ordinary High Water Mark ("OHWM") for an 83 mile stretch of Lake 
Sakakawea extending from the northern boundary of the Fort Berthold Indian Reservation to a few 
miles west of Williston. Between January 1 2, 20 1 7  and April 1 8 , 20 1 7, not counting actions by 
the full House and Senate, at least 1 8  separate committee hearings and subcommittee meetings 
were held, allowing for extensive testimony and dozens of amendments and proposed amendments 
to be considered. This process resulted in a Legislative history record of 699 pages .  1 

The Bill adopted the Corps of Engineers survey of the historical Missouri River channel as the 
presumptive determination of the OHWM, however, due to some uncertainties of the Corps 
Survey, a new study was authorized to review the Corps survey to confirm or modify the Corps 
survey if clear and convincing evidence existed that the survey must be modified to conform to 
North Dakota law. Briefly, the Bill set forth the following parameters for determining the OHWM: 

1 .  The Department of Mineral Resources ("DMR") is designated to oversee the review 
process.2 

2 .  Required the DMR to retain an independent Engineering and Surveying Firm ("Firm") to 
conduct the review. 

1 The legislative history is available online at http ://www.legis . nd.gov/files/resource/65-

20l 7/library/sb2 l 34 .pdf 
2 The Legislature concluded the DMR was the most appropriate agency to oversee the review based 
on its own technical expertise as well as extensive experience in conducting public hearings . 
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3 .  Establishes specific parameters the Firm must consider in evaluating the OHWM, 
including aerial photography, Corps of Engineer historical records, elevation and flow data, 
and to apply existing state case law defining the OHWM.3 

4 .  Due Process standards. Upon completion of the review, the Firm presents its findings and 
recommendations for any adjustments, modifications or corrections to the Corps Survey to 
the Department of Mineral Resources. Unlike either the Corps survey or prior State 
surveys, the Act provides due process safeguards by requiring the review findings to be 
published for a 60 day comment period followed by a public hearing. After the public 
hearing and consideration of comments, the DMR and Engineering Firm must prepare a 
final recommendation and submit the recommendation to the Industrial Commission. The 
Industrial Commission may adopt, amend, or reject the new survey. 

5 .  Finally, after the Industrial Commission adopts the final review, Section 6 1 -3 3 . 1 -05 affords 
any interested party the right to seek judicial review directly in District Court within two 
years after the adoption of the new review findings. 

After its enactment, the Industrial Commission awarded the study contract to Wenck Associates. 
In April 20 1 8  Wenck Associates presented its preliminary finding to the NDIC at a public hearing. 
The preliminary finding concluded the Corps survey delineated 1 6,687 acres as being within the 
OHWM and owned by the State . The preliminary Wenck study showed 27,089 acres within the 
OHWM, or 1 0,402 more acres than the Corps survey as being owned by the State . However, the 
preliminary Wenck study was about 1 5 ,000 less acres than claimed by the State ' s  Phase 2 survey . 

Following the publication of the preliminary report, a 60 day comment period was afforded 
followed by a public hearing on June 26, 20 1 8 . Twenty two commenters submitted 1 436  pages of 
written comments and 1 5  people provided testimony at the hearing. The public comments were 
reviewed and considered for three months, and on September 27, 20 1 8 , a final study proposal was 
submitted to the NDIC which the NDIC approved. The final study concluded an additional 900 
acres or so should be excluded from the OHWM. Thus, the final study determined that the acreage 
within the OHWM of the historical Missouri River channel extended approximately 9,000 acres 
more than the Corps survey, but 1 6,000 acres less than the State ' s  Phase 2 survey. 

THE WENCK OHWM STUDY 

The Wenck study for the NDIC essentially set the boundary line of where the ordinary high water 
mark is located along the historical Missouri River Channel .  We can look at their graphics and 
have a visual understanding of where the line lays and identify minerals that lie above and below 
the blue line . The Wenck study set the boundary line and calculated the total acreage that lies 
within the riverbed for the 83 mile stretch of the study, however, the study did not break down or 
otherwise calculate the acreages above and below the OHWM on a tract or per section basis, or 
calculate the acreages lying above and below the ordinary high water mark for each individual oil 
well spacing unit. For both the State and oil and gas operators to implement the required ownership 

3 Section 6 1 - 33 . l -03(3) (d) relating to the definition of ordinary high water mark essentially codifies 

North Dakota judicial decisions . 
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adjustments for each oil and gas well, it will be necessary to calculate the acreages on a spacing 
unit basis .  

To briefly demonstrate, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 is a segment from the Wenck study. The 
black square represents Section 23 ,  the pink lines show the quarter sections. Although one can 
easily see the OHWM designation (the blue line) a title examiner cannot determine the precise 
acreage of the riverbed in each of the four quarter sections, nor can we determine the acreages of 
the tracts of land above the blue line . 

Exhibit 2 shows, in part, what needs to be accomplished. First, a professional surveying firm will 
incorporate the exact location of known original government survey comers, and then will overlay 
the coordinates of the OHWM blue line into their survey. They will then calculate the acreages 
above and below the OHWM, see the red 6 .08 acre tract as an example, except that this will need 
to be done for all tracts . 

Therefore, to implement the study, the provision in this Bill authorizing the Land Board to retain 
a professional surveying and engineering firm to perform the acreage calculations is critical . To 
be clear, this amendment does not call for a new study of the OHWM, it is simply a necessary 
measure to properly complete the study by having a professional surveying firm, using well 
established professional surveying standards, to designate the acreages for each affected tract 
which will enhance the integrity of the Study and afford proper legal descriptions for future land 
conveyances . 

EXTENSION OF TIME TO IMPLEMENT 

The original provisions of Senate Bill 2 1 34 required that operators and the State implement the 
necessary acreage adjustments within 6 months (for certain tracts) and two years of the adoption 
of the final study by the Industrial Commission. The NDIC adopted the study on September 27, 
20 1 8 , meaning that the six month provision technically would take effect on March 27, 20 1 9 . This 
bill amends the two year provision in Section 6 1 -3 3 . 1 -04(2) such that it will not take effect until 
"the board approves the acreage determination." We support this amendment, however, to be 
consistent and to ensure that operators and the State have the necessary acreage calculations, we 
are requesting that the six month provision in Section 6 1 -3 3 . 1 -04( 1 )  also be amended to take effect 
upon the board approving the acreage determinations. 

Thank you for your consideration . 
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N O RTH DAKOTA D E PARTM ENT O F  M I N E RA L  RESOU RCES 
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PROPOSED AM ENDM ENTS TO SENATE B I LL NO .  22 1 1  

S{j ZZ I I 
2 . 7 . 1 1  
.# I 
fj . ( 

Page 1, l i n e  1, after "to" i n sert "create and  enact a new subsect ion to sect ion 61-33 . 1-03 of the  

No rth Da kota Centu ry Code ;  and to" 

Page 1, after l i n e  4, i nsert :  

SECTION 1 .  A new subsect ion t o  sect ion 61-33 . 1-03 o f  the  North  Dakota Centu ry 

Code  is created a n d  e nacted as fo l lows : 

Upon adopt ion  of the fi n a l  review fi n d i ngs by the  i n d u st ri a l  com m iss ion, the 

boa rd of u n ivers ity and schoo l  l ands may contract with a qua l ified engi n eer i ng 

a n d  su rveyi ng fi rm to ana lyze the  fi n a l  review fi n d i ngs a nd  determ i ne  the  acreage 

on  a qua rter-qua rter bas is  or govern ment lot bas i s  a bove a n d  be low the  ord i n a ry 

h igh water ma rk as de l i neated by the fi n a l  review fi n d i ngs of the  i n du st ri a l  

com m iss i o n .  The acreage determ i n at ion i f  fi n a l  upon  approva l by the  board .  

Page 1 ,  l i n e  8 ,  overstr i ke "fi n a l  review fi n d i ngs" a n d  i n sert immed i ate ly  thereafter "acreage 

d eterm i n at ion"  

Page 1, l i ne  8, overstr ike " i n dustr i a l" 

Page 1, l i n e  9, ove rstr i ke "comm iss ion" a n d  i n se rt im med i ate ly  the reafter "boa rd of u n ivers ity 

a n d  schoo l  l a nds" 

Page 1, l i n e  20, overst r i ke "fi n a l  review fi nd i ngs" a n d  i n se rt immed i ate ly thereafter "acreage 

determ i n at ion"  

Page 1, l i ne  20 ,  ove rst r i ke " i nd ustr i a l  comm iss ion" and i n sert immed i ate ly the reafter "boa rd of  

u n ivers ity and schoo l  l ands" 

Page 1, l i n e  2 1, remove "may contract with a qua l ified"  

Page 1, remove l i n es 22 t h rough 24 

Page 2, remove l i n e  1 

Page 2, l i n e  2, remove "boa rd .  After approvi ng the  acreage dete rm i n at ion, the boa rd" 

Ren u m ber  accord i ng ly 
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House Energy and Natura l  Resources Committee 
January 31 , 201 9 9 :00 AM 
Honorable Representative Todd Porter, Cha i rman 
Senate B i l l  221 1 
Testimony by Senator Brad Bekkedah l  

Chairman Porter and Committee , 

Brad Bekkedah l ,  Senator from District 1 here to i ntroduce a critica l 
b i l l  re lative to m inera ls development and d isposition of payments 
addressed last session in Senate B i l l  2 1 34 .  Th is  b i l l  has been 
requested by The Department of Trust Lands ,  wh ich is  the 
admin istrative arm that serves under the Board of Trust Lands .  

The 65th Leg is lative Assembly's adoption of  Senate B i l l  2 1 34 ,  
cod ified as N . D .C .C .  ch . 6 1 -33 . 1 ,  provided for the process for 
determ in i ng the ord i nary h igh-water mark of the h istorica l M issouri 
Riverbed channe l . Th is b i l l  was set up  to create a defi ned process 
for retu rn ing  an estimated $ 1 87 m i l l ion in m inera l  payments 
received by the State that, i n  some cases , may have belonged to 
private cit izens who reta ined the i r  m inera l  rights when the U .S .  
Army Corps of Eng i neers bought the land for Lake Sakakawea . 

SB 2211 
3.�. 19 

Attachment 1 

The North Dakota I ndustria l  Commission completed the survey of 
the 83 m i le stretch of the M issouri River based on the orig ina l  Corps 
of Eng ineers survey prior to i nundation by Garrison Dam , and the 
I ndustria l  Commission adopted these fi nd ings on September 27 ,  
20 1 8 , de l i neati ng  the h istorica l M issouri Riverbed channel . 
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The Department of Trust Lands is cu rrently procu ri ng  an 
eng i neeri ng fi rm to  provide the necessary data to implement 
acreage adjustments ,  lease bonus and roya lty refunds ,  and 
payments as may be necessary .  The Department is  unab le to 
re lease funds without th is  add it iona l  i nformation . An extens ion of 
the time frame as provided i n  Senate B i l l  22 1 1 wi l l  a l l ow for the 
Department to receive the necessary requ i rements and comply with 
N . D .C .C .  ch . 6 1 . 33 . 1 . We wou ld  a lso ask the committee to 
enterta i n  an amendment we have prepared to p lace an emergency 
c lause on the b i l l  to comply with cu rrent statutory t ime l i nes ,  as wel l  
as  being benefic ia l  to the t imel i ne for fi na l  resol ut ion to those 
affected . 

I t  is  antici pated the eng i neering contract wi l l  be awarded by May 1 ,  
20 1 9 and wi l l  be comp leted as soon as poss ib le .  U pon completion 
of the of the su rvey, wh ich is not dup l icating efforts a l ready 
completed by the N D I C ,  the Board of Un iversity and  School Lands 
wi l l  approve the acreage adjustments .  The Department of Trust 
Lands wi l l  then be properly posit ioned to release funds based upon 
these acreage adjustments . Ensuring adequate t ime is  ava i lab le for 
the eng ineeri ng  fi rm and for Board review is  necessary to the 
enhance the i nteg rity of the Wenck Study and ensure leg is lative 
i ntent was fo l l owed with SB 2 1 34 .  Passage of th is  b i l l  wi l l  bring  
certa inty to d ispos it ion  of  roya lty revenues current ly he ld  in  
suspense , and concl us ion to many areas of  content ion that sti l l  exist 
re lative to these m i nera l  acres , as wel l  as a l l ow the i ndustry to 
conti nue to deve lop areas they have avoided due to th is  issue .  
P lease recommend a Do Pass for Senate B i l l  22 1 1 .  Thank  you , 
Cha i rman Porter and  Committee. I am happy to stand for any 
questions .  

• 
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1 9 .0598.03001 
Tit le .  

Prepared by the Legislative Counci l  staff for 
Senator Unruh 

March 4, 201 9  

PROPOSED AMENDM ENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BI LL NO. 221 1  

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 5, after "dams" insert "; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 3, after l ine 26, insert :  

"SECTION 4. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure . "  

Renumber accordingly 

Page No . 1 1 9 .0598.03001 

SB 2211 
3. 2J-9 
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1 707 North 9th Street 
PO Box 5523 
Bismarck , ND 58506-5523 
Phone: (701 ) 328 - 2800 
Fax: (701 ) 328 - 3650 

www.land.nd.gov 
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at)TRUST LANDS 

TESTIMONY OF JODI SMITH 
Commissioner 

North Dakota Department of Trust Lands 

Senate Bill 221 1  

House Energy and Natural Resources Committee 
March 8, 2019 

INVESTING FOR EDUCATION 

Jodi A. Smith, Commissioner 

Chairman Porter and members of the House Energy and Natural Resources Committee, I am Jodi Smith, 
the Commissioner and Secretary for the Board of University and School Lands (Board). I am here to 
testify in support of Senate Bill 2211. 

The Department of Trust Lands (Department) is the administrative arm of the Board, serving under the 
direction and authority of the Board. The Board is comprised of the Governor, Secretary of State, Attorney 
General, State Treasurer, and Superintendent of Public Instruction. The Department's primary 
responsibility is managing the Common Schools Trust Fund and 13 other permanent educational trust 
funds. The beneficiaries of the trust funds include local school districts , various colleges and universities, 
and other institutions in North Dakota. The Department manages four additional funds: the Strategic 
Investment and Improvements Fund, the Coal Development Trust Fund, the Capitol Building Fund, and 
the Indian Cultural Education Trust. 

The Department also administers the responsibilities outlined in the Uniform Unclaimed Property Act, 
N.D.C.C. ch. 47-30.1. In this role the Department collects "unclaimed property" (uncashed checks, 
unused bank accounts, etc . ) ,  and processes owners' claims. This property is held in permanent trust for 
owners to claim, with the revenue from the investment of the property benefiting the Common Schools 
Trust Fund. 

Additionally, the Department operates the Energy Infrastructure and Impact Office (E I IO) ,  which provides 
financial support to political subdivisions that are affected by energy development. Assistance is provided 
through both the oil and gas impact grant program and the coal impact loan program. The EI IO  also 
distributes energy and flood grants carried over from prior biennia. 

Overview 

The North Dakota's Constitution and Century Code designate the Board to manage state-owned minerals 
and the oil, gas and related hydrocarbons within the beds of the State's navigable waters. On behalf of 
the State, the Board oversees the Strategic Investment and Improvements Fund (SI I F) which collects the 
revenues from sovereign minerals. The Board has had this management responsibility since at least 
1977. 
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Page 2 of 6 
Testimony of Jod i Smith 
March 8, 201 9 

SB 2211 
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Attachment 3 

The 65th Legislative Assembly's adoption of Senate Bill 2134 (SB 2134), codified as N.D.C.C. ch. 61-
33.1, provided for the determination of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) for a certain stretch of the 
Missouri River. The bill directed the North Dakota Industrial Commission (NDIC) to review the delineation 
of the OHWM of the US Army Corp of Engineers (USAGE)  survey segments from the northern boundary 
of the Fort Berthold Indian reservation to the southern border of Sections 33 and 34, Township 153 North, 
Range 102 West, McKenzie, Mountrail, and Williams Counties, North Dakota. 

As you may be aware, the Ordinary High Water Mark of the Missouri River Bed review as prepared by 
Wenck Associates, Inc. (Review) was presented to the NDIC on April 17 , 2018. Thereafter, the NDIC 
issued its Order of the Commission, Order No. 29129, approving the Review on September 27 ,  2018. 
Information concerning the Review can be found on the Department of Mineral Resources' website. 

Throughout the Review process, the Department did not comment on the OHWM definition provided in 
the Review, data compilation methods, methodology, legal research conducted to determine clear and 
convincing evidence standards, or other technical comments relating to the specific boundary 
delineations. Rather, the Department's comments focused on the usability of the Review for purposes 
of "implementing any acreage adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as 
may be necessary relating to state-issued oil and gas leases" , N.D.C.C. § 61-33.1-04(2 )(a), specifically: 
(1) public domain tracts; (2) omitted data and variables; and (3) alignment of data. For purposes of 
example, the following provides concerns the Department raised which impact its ability to proceed with 
the Board's directives under N.D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1: 

Public Domain Tracts 

N.D.C.C. § 61-33.1-06 states: 

Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the contrary, the ordinary high water mark 
of the historical Missouri riverbed channel abutting non-patented public domain lands 
owned by the United States must be determined by the branch of cadastral study of the 
United States bureau of land management in accordance with federal law. 

A public domain tract is land owned by the Federal Government since statehood or land that has never 
left the public ownership. Of the estimated 7 ,300 public domain acres, N.D.C.C. § 61-33.1-06 defers 
determination of the OHWM to the branch of cadastral study of the United States bureau of land 
management in accordance with federal law. The Department's interpretation of N.D.C.C. § 61-33.1-06 
is that the OHWM of the historical Missouri riverbed channel abutting the public domain tracts was to 
have been established at statehood or by the Supplemental Plats prepared by "the branch of cadastral 
study of the United States bureau of land management . . . .  " Id. These Supplemental Plats were 
prepared for the purpose of delineating the boundaries of public domain oil and gas interests in 
determining the acreage of the areas affected by the movement of the Missouri River prior to the 
inundation of Lake Sakakawea. 

The Department's initial analysis of the Review, which included comparison to the Supplemental Plats, 
determined Wenck Associates, Inc. (Wenck) :  (1) did not identify in its OHWM Delineation Results Tables 
2a and 2b (Tables) which tracts are deemed public domain, and (2)  delineated the OHWM through public 
domain tracts, thus affecting the State's total estimated acreage presented in the Review . 
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Page 3 of 6 
Test imony of Jod i Smith 
March 8, 20 1 9  

Examples of the OHWM delineated through public domain tracts are as follows: 

T153- R99 Sec. 34; T152-R99 Sec. 6 - Exhibit A 
T153-R98 Sec. 11 - Exhibit B 
T153-R98 Sec. 21 & 28 - Exhibit C 

Omitted Data and Variables 

SB 221l 

3.$•J 9 
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Through the Department's initial analysis of the Review, the Department found that relevant river acreage 
data is missing from the Tables which may lead to inaccurate conclusions. The rows of the Tables titled 
BLM River Corridor appear to provide an overall acreage for the riverbed, but do not identify the acreage 
for specific quarter-quarter sections. The Review does not fully allocate acreages above or below the 
OHWM,  thus preventing the Department from calculating the number of acres within each section. For 
the Department to implement acreage adjustments as required under N.D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1, the 
Department will need this data to be provided through a contract with an independent engineering firm. 
The Department will also need accretion data attributable to riparian or upland landowners within each 
quarter-quarter section. Without this data, the Board cannot accurately "implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to 
state-issued oil and gas leases." N.D. C.C. § 61-33.1-04(2)(a). 

Examples of areas with missing data include: 

T153-R99 Sec. 27 - Exhibit D 
T154-R96 Sec. 25 - Exhibit E 

Alignment of Data 

Significant Digit-Decimal Point 

The Department requested the columns of the Tables be brought out to at least two decimal points to 
mirror how land is denoted in the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Master Title Plats (Master Title 
Plats) or Public Land Survey System (PLSS). No changes were made concerning this request. Currently, 
the Tables only provide one decimal point. The rounding of acreage could result in a significant acreage 
change for the State and fee owners. Without the additional information, the Department would be forced 
to make assumptions on acreage adjustments. 

Total Acres - Tables 2a and 2b 

The Department requested additional information regarding Wenck's determination of "Total Acres" as 
presented in the second column of the Tables, as that information is not clearly defined in the Review. In 
many instances, it appears acreage in a quarter-quarter has increased or decreased with no explanation 
of where that acreage went or where it was added from. The Department sought additional information 
regarding the acreage depicted throughout the Tables as it is not consistent with the Master Title Plats 
by which the Department and industry's spacing unit boundaries have been determined. That information 
was not made available to the Department. 
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Many of the legal descriptions of the tracts of land along the historical Missouri riverbed channel are 
incorrectly labeled. The Review disregards pre-established government lots that were created per the 
original Master Title Plats. Instead, in many instances, the Review refers to government lots by their 
location within the section. 

Furthermore, the Review protracts quarter-quarters both in riparian areas and through accreted lands. 
This does not protect the interests of the upland mineral owners, both in terms of their rights to the 
shoreline and patented area. Examples of possible inaccurate legal descriptions are: 

T153-R93W Sec. 20 - Exhibit F 
T153-R93W Sec. 26- Exhibit G 
T153-R94W Sec. 3 & 4; T154-R94 Sec. 34 - Exhibit H 
T153-R99 Sec. 36 - Exhibit I 

In response to comments, NDIC's September 27, 2018 Order of the Commission, Order No. 29129, found 
among other things that: 

1. " [T]he Wenck Study was not intended to provide accurate acreage allocations for property 
transfer which is outside the scope of the legislation; the data sets provided to Wenck for 
use in calculating acreages represent the most efficient method for determination of areas 
necessary for decisions by the [NDIC] ; no land surveying was done nor contracted to be done in 
the course of [the Wenck] study. " Order at 4 . 

2. " [T]he cost to complete the necessary research and surveys to apportion property significantly 
exceeds the appropriated funds." Id. 

3. " [A]dequate documentation and data for parties to determine how interests might be 
impacted were provided in the Wenck Study and subsequent communications." Id. 

N. D. C.C. § 61 -33.1-04(2)(a) provides that upon the adoption of the final review findings by the NDIC: 

The board of university and school lands shall begin to implement any acreage 
adjustments, lease bonus and royalty refunds,  and payment demands as may be 
necessary relating to state-issued oil and gas leases. The board shall complete the 
adjustments, refunds, and payment demands within two years after the date of 
adoption of the final review findings. 

At this time, the Department does not have the information to determine the exact acreage adjustments 
required to release any collected bonus and royalty proceeds held by the Board. In order for the 
Department to fully satisfy its requirements under SB 2134, codified at N. D. C.C. ch. 61-33.1, the 
Department will need to contract with an engineering firm to analyze the Review and the PLSS maps. 
Utilizing G IS, the Review's shapefile can be imported and overlaid with the BLM Master Title Plats to 
break down acreage above and below the Review's OHWM determination coordinates on a quarter­
quarter or government lot basis. However, because the State issued its oil and gas leases on a quarter 
section basis, if the OHWM of the river runs through any part of a particular quarter section, the 
Department needs the contracted engineering firm to identify: 

1. The amount of acreage in each quarter section that would be sovereign lands below the 
OHWM and subject to State lease (based on a quarter section) ;  
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2 .  Acreage above the OHWM in each quarter-quarter section or government lot owned by 
upland owners to allow for more finite calculations; and 

3. Acreage allocations for accretions (where accretions are present) lying above the OHWM 
attributable to riparian tracts within each section. 
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On December 17, 2018, the Board authorized the Commissioner to accept and review proposals for 
analysis and GIS services for property related to the OHWM Study of the historical Missouri riverbed 
channel prepared by Wenck Associates, Inc. A Request for Proposal ("RFP") was issued on December 
17, 2018. The scope of the project is to verify the boundaries and to calculate the acreage of each PLSS 
section within the Project Area, broken down by quarter-quarter section or government lot above and 
below the OHWM as identified by NDIC through the Review pursuant to N. D .C .C .  § 61-33.1-03. This 
includes the entire acreage of any PLSS section that is fully or partially included in the Project Area. The 
determination of the OHWM from the Review is assumed to be correct. 

The project would utilize all available data, records, and resources including the Review, the PLSS ,  BLM 
General Land Office (GLO) updated Master Title Plats (available at the BLM) ,  original GLO Survey Plats 
(available at the North Dakota State Water Commission) ,  BLM field notes, and any other relevant data, 
records and resources. Where previous survey data is not available, lacking, or otherwise unusable, the 
engineering firm performing the project would be required to conduct the field work necessary to supply 
the necessary data to complete and/or verify accurate boundaries within the Project Area. 

Conclusion 

As the Department does not have complete information to proceed with acreage adjustments, lease 
bonus and royalty refunds, it is imperative that more time be allowed for additional data to be gathered 
and compiled. It will take an engineering firm approximately twelve months, from the time of contract 
execution ,  to gather and compile the information. Currently, there is a scheduled award date of May 1, 
2019. The Department is in support of the proposed Emergency Clause amendment as this will allow 
the Department to begin the project as soon as possible. This project will take time and is not an easy 
process. Allowing additional time for this to be completed will result in accurate computations and 
thereafter , accurate refund amounts. 

Once the engineering firm completes the work requested in the RFP, the Department will promptly begin 
updating records to satisfy the Board's duty under N. D .C .C .  § 61-33.1-04(2 )(a). Unfortunately, this 
process will be time-consuming due to all that is required of both the engineering firm and the divisions 
within the Department. At this time, the most logical way to implement this project would be to review 
each parcel within each spacing unit. Each parcel will need to be reviewed for changes to the database, 
Correction of Oil and Gas Leases will be prepared for execution, requests for refunds of bonus and 
royalties will be prepared, each well will need a new royalty management unit to ensure future royalties 
will be allocated to the correct trust, the Department's shapefiles will be updated, and the Department will 
need to track all documentation for each lease correction. 

Prior to any mailings or issuance of refunds appropriate documentation for each parcel requiring 
adjustments needs to be reviewed by the Department's Director of Minerals Management and the 
Revenue Compliance Division. Following review by the Commissioner, a refund authorization would be 
forwarded to the Accounting Division for submission. Once refunds are issued, Correction of Oil and Gas 
Lease documentation is mailed to the lessee of record based on the ownership records of the Department 
and the current operator . If the lessee fails to return an executed copy or cash the check, the Department 
will need to take additional steps. 

5 
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Due to the failure of lessees to submit assignments for Department approval as required by Department 
policies or the lease, Department records do not always accurately reflect the current lessee of any given 
lease which could possibly impact the timeliness of the refunds. Refunds of bonus will be issued to the 
current lessee, based on the records of the Department and royalty payments will be returned to the 
current operator of each spacing unit. 

Senate Bill 2211 's provision to essentially start the clock upon the Board's approval of the acreage 
adjustment calculations is necessary to the implementation of acreage adjustments, lease bonus and 
royalty refunds. Within the 83 miles reviewed by Wenck, the Department has: 

• Approximately 511 active leases covering 44, 700 acres; 
• 100 different working interest owners with potential refunds due based upon their proportionate 

interest of the leases; and 
• Interests in approximately 525 wells operated by 10 different companies. 

Barring delays due to legal challenges or unresponsive lessees, it is anticipated the Department could 
complete approximately 40 lease corrections each month, resulting in completion of more than 500 lease 
corrections within two years of the Board's adoption of the engineering firm's acreage adjustment 
calculations. 

The Department recognizes and appreciates the significant work of Wenck and the NDIC to produce the 
Review and recognizes it as the initial step in the process; however, additional work is needed to provide 
the Department with the necessary data to "implement any acreage adjustments, lease bonus and royalty 
refunds, and payment demands as may be necessary relating to state-issued oil and gas leases." 
N.D.C.C. § 61-33.1-04(2)(a). The Department cannot complete the steps required under N.D.C.C. ch. 
61-33.1 without this information. Extension of the time frames as provided in Senate Bill 2211 would 
allow for the Department to receive the necessary information to comply with the requirements of 
N.D.C.C. ch. 61-33.1. 

I look forward to working with the committee on these issues and would be happy to answer any 
questions . 
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Chairman Porter and members of the House Energy & Natural Resources Committee, my name is 
Craig Smith. I am an attorney with the Crowley Fleck law firm in Bismarck practicing oil and 
gas law for the past 30  years. I 'm appearing today on behalf of the North Dakota Petroleum 
Council and in support of Senate Bill 2 1 22 .  

BACKGROUND 

This Bill adds certain amendments to Senate Bill 2 1 34 enacted by the 20 1 7  Legislative Assembly 
and codified as Chapter 6 1 -33 . 1  of the Century Code relating to the ownership of mineral rights 
of land inundated by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. Prior to discussing the specifics of 
this Bi l l ,  a brief summary of Senate Bi l l  No. 2 1 34 and the status of the Ordinary High Water Mark 
study may be appropriate . 

As you will recall ,  Senate Bill 2 1 34 was an exhaustive and dedicated effort that culminated in a 
comprehensive set of laws to establish the parameters and a thorough process for determining the 
historical Missouri riverbed Ordinary High Water Mark ("OHWM") for an 83 mile stretch of Lake 
Sakakawea extending from the northern boundary of the Fort Berthold Indian Reservation to a few 
miles west of Williston. Between January 1 2, 20 1 7  and April 1 8 , 20 1 7, not counting actions by 
the full House and Senate, at least 1 8  separate committee hearings and subcommittee meetings 
were held, allowing for extensive testimony and dozens of amendments and proposed amendments 
to be considered. This process resulted in a Legislative history record of 699 pages. 1 

The Bill adopted the Corps of Engineers survey of the historical Missouri River channel as the 
presumptive determination of the OHWM, however, due to some uncertainties of the Corps 
Survey, a new study was authorized to review the Corps survey to confirm or modify the Corps 
survey if clear and convincing evidence existed that the survey must be modified to conform to 
North Dakota law. Briefly, the Bill set forth the following parameters for determining the OHWM: 

1 .  The Department of Mineral Resources ("DMR") is designated to oversee the review 
process.2 

2 .  Required the DMR to retain an independent Engineering and Surveying Firm ("Firm") to 
conduct the review. 

1 The legislative history is available online at http ://www .legis .nd. gov/files/resource/65-

20 1 7/library/sb2 1 34.pdf 
2 The Legislature concluded the DMR was the most appropriate agency to oversee the review based 

on its own technical expertise as well as extensive experience in conducting public hearings . 
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3 .  Establishes specific parameters the Firm must consider in evaluating the OHWM, 
including aerial photography, Corps of Engineer historical records, elevation and flow data, 
and to apply existing state case law defining the OHWM.3 

4 .  Due Process standards. Upon completion of the review, the Firm presents its findings and 
recommendations for any adjustments, modifications or corrections to the Corps Survey to 
the Department of Mineral Resources. Unlike either the Corps survey or prior State 
surveys, the Act provides due process safeguards by requiring the review findings to be 
published for a 60 day comment period followed by a public hearing. After the public 
hearing and consideration of comments, the DMR and Engineering Firm must prepare a 
final recommendation and submit the recommendation to the Industrial Commission. The 
Industrial Commission may adopt, amend, or reject the new survey. 

5. Finally, after the Industrial Commission adopts the final review, Section 6 1 -3 3 . 1 -05 affords 
any interested party the right to seek judicial review directly in District Court within two 
years after the adoption of the new review findings .  

After its enactment, the Industrial Commission awarded the study contract to  Wenck Associates .  
In April 20 1 8  Wenck Associates presented its preliminary finding to the NDIC at a public hearing. 
The preliminary finding concluded the Corps survey delineated 1 6,687 acres as being within the 
OHWM and owned by the State . The preliminary Wenck study showed 27,089 acres within the 
OHWM, or 1 0,402 more acres than the Corps survey as being owned by the State . However, the 
preliminary Wenck study was about 1 5 ,000 less acres than claimed by the State ' s  Phase 2 survey . 

Following the publication of the preliminary report, a 60 day comment period was afforded 
followed by a public hearing on June 26, 20 1 8 . Twenty two commenters submitted 1 436  pages of 
written comments and 1 5  people provided testimony at the hearing. The public comments were 
reviewed and considered for three months, and on September 27,  20 1 8 , a final study proposal was 
submitted to the NDIC which the NDIC approved. The final study concluded an additional 900 
acres or so should be excluded from the OHWM. Thus, the final study determined that the acreage 
within the OHWM of the historical Missouri River channel extended approximately 9,000 acres 
more than the Corps survey, but 1 6,000 acres less than the State ' s  Phase 2 survey. 

THE WENCK OHWM STUDY 

The Wenck study for the NDIC essentially set the boundary line of where the ordinary high water 
mark is located along the historical Missouri River Channel .  We can look at their graphics and 
have a visual understanding of where the line lays and identify minerals that lie above and below 
the blue line. The Wenck study set the boundary line and calculated the total acreage that lies 
within the riverbed for the 83 mile stretch of the study, however, the study did not break down or 
otherwise calculate the acreages above and below the OHWM on a tract or per section basis, or 
calculate the acreages lying above and below the ordinary high water mark for each individual oil 
well spacing unit. For both the State and oil and gas operators to implement the required ownership 

3 Section 6 1 -33 . l -03(3) (d) relating to the definition of ordinary high water mark essentially codifies 

North Dakota judicial decisions . 
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adjustments for each oil and gas well, it will be necessary to calculate the acreages on a spacing 
unit basis. 

To briefly demonstrate, Slide 5 from the PowerPoint presentation is a segment from the Wenck 
study. The black square represents Section 23 ,  the pink lines show the quarter sections . Although 
one can easily see the OHWM designation (the blue line) a title examiner cannot determine the 
precise acreage of the riverbed in each of the four quarter sections, nor can we determine the 
acreages of the tracts of land above the blue line. 

Slides 7 and 8 show, in part, what needs to be accomplished. First, a professional surveying firm 
will incorporate the exact location of known original government survey comers, and then will 
overlay the coordinates of the Wenck OHWM blue line into their survey. They will then calculate 
the acreages above and below the OHWM for each tract above and below the blue line, see the red 
6 .08 acre tract as an example, except that this will need to be done for all tracts, in addition to 
proportionately allocating accretions to the proper upland owners. 

Therefore, to implement the study, the provision in this Bill authorizing the Land Board to retain 
a professional surveying and engineering firm to perform the acreage calculations is critical . To 
be clear, this amendment does not call for a new study of the OHWM, it is simply a necessary 
measure to properly complete the study by having a professional surveying firm, using well 
established professional surveying standards, to designate the acreages for each affected tract 
which will enhance the integrity of the Study and afford proper legal descriptions for future land 

• conveyances. 

• 

EXTENSION OF TIME TO IMPLEMENT 

The original provisions of Senate Bill 2 1 34 required that operators and the State implement the 
necessary acreage adjustments within 6 months (for certain tracts) and two years of the adoption 
of the final study by the Industrial Commission. The NDIC adopted the study on September 27,  
20 1 8 , meaning that the s ix month provision technically would take effect on March 27, 20 1 9 . This 
bill amends the six month and two year implementation provisions such that it will not take effect 
until "the board approves the acreage determination." We support this amendment to the original 
provisions of SB 2 1 34 .  

Thank you for your consideration . 

3 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2211 

Page 1, line 3, after "sections" insert "61-33.1-02,"  

Page 1, l ine 3,  replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page· 1, line 3, after "61-33.1-05" insert ", and 61-33.1-07" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "inundated" with "subject to inundation" 

Page 1, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61-33.1-02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation by 
Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note} 

The state sovereign land mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams extends only 
to the historical Missouri riverbed channel up to the ordinary high water mark. The state 
holds no claim or title to any minerals above the ordinary high water mark of the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan 
Missouri basin project dams, except for original grant lands acquired by the state under 
federal law and any minerals acquired by the state through purchase, foreclosure, or 
other written conveyance. Mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams which are 
located within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Berthold reservation and Standing 
Rock Indian reservation is control led by other law and is excepted from this section. "  

Page 3, after line 2q, insert: 

"SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61-33.1-07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction. (Retroactive application -
See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state engineer to regulate the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel, minerals other than oil and gas, or the waters of 
the state, provided the regulation does not affect ownership of oil and gas minerals in 
and under the riverbed or lands above the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams. "  

Renumber accordingly 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENG ROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2211 

Page 1,  line 1,  after "enact" insert "section 61-33-01.1 and" 

Page 1, line 2, remove "and" 

Page 1, l ine 3, after "sections" insert "61 -33-01 and 61-33.1-02, subdivision e of subsection 3 of 
section 61-33.1-03, sections" 

Page 1, line 3 ,  replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 3 ,  after "61-33.1-05" insert " ,  and 61-33.1-07 

Page 1, l ine 4, after "to" insert "sovereign lands, determining the ordinary high water mark, and" 

Page 1, l ine 4 ,  replace "inundated" with "subject to inundation" 

Page 1, line 5, after "dams" insert " ;  to provide a contingent appropriation; to provide for 
application; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1,  after l ine 6 ,  insert: 

"SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 61-33-01 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33-01 . Definitions . 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires: 

1. "Board" means the sovereign lands advisory board. 

2. " Board of university and school lands" means that entity created by section 
15-01-01. 

3. "Ordinary high water mark" means the continuous line along the banks of 
navigable rivers and lakes where the presence and action of waters of the 
navigable river or lake are so common and usual, and so long continued in 
al l ordinary years, as to mark upon the bank of a navigable river or lake a 
character distinct from that of the abutting upland. The ordinary high water 
mark line must be continuous in elevation or gently sloping, fol lowing the 
gradient of the river. 

4.  "Sovereign lands" means those areas, including beds and islands, lying 
within the ordinary high water mark of navigable lakes and streams. Lands 
established to be riparian accretion or reliction lands pursuant to section 
47-06-05 are considered to be above the ordinary high water mark and are 
not sovereign lands. 

4.-§.,_ "State engineer" means the person appointed by the state water 
commission pursuant to section 61-03-01. 

SECTION 2. Section 61-33-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as fol lows: 

Page No. 1 19.0598.03004 



61 -33-01 .1 . Ordinary high water mark determination - Factors to be 
considered. 

The state engineer shall maintain ordinary high water mark delineation 
guidelines consistent with this section . 

.1. When determining the ordinary high water mark for delineating the 
boundary of sovereign lands, vegetation and soils analysis must be 
considered the primary physical indicators. When considering vegetation, 
the ordinary high water mark is the line below which the presence and 
action of the water is frequent enough to prevent the growth of terrestrial 
vegetation or restrict vegetation growth to predominately aquatic species. 
General ly, land, including hay land, where the high and continuous 
presence of water has destroyed the value of the land for agricultural 
purposes must be deemed within the ordinary high water mark. 

2. When feasible, direct hydrological and hydraulic measurements from 
stream gauge data, elevation data, historic records of water flow, high 
resolution light detection and ranging systems, prior elevation and survey 
maps, and statistical hydrological evidence must be considered when 
determining the ordinary high water mark. The state engineer shall 
establish appropriate guidelines, technical standards, and other criteria, 
including use of light detection and ranging systems or other future 
technological advancements, as necessary, for conducting hydrologic and 
hydraulic modeling required by this section. 

3. Secondary physical indicators, including litter, debris, or staining, may be 
considered to supplement the analysis of the ordinary high water mark 
investigation but may not supersede primary physical indicators unless 
primary physical indicators are deemed inadequate or inconclusive. 
Physical indicators directly affected by influent non-navigable tributaries, 
adjoining water bodies, or wetlands may not be used to delineate the 
sovereign land boundary of a navigable body of water. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61 -33. 1 -02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation by 
Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovereign land mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedcubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams extends only 
to the historical Missouri riverbed channel up to the ordinary high water mark. The state 
holds no claim or title to any minerals above the ordinary high water mark of the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel inundatedcubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan 
Missouri basin project dams, except for original grant lands acquired by the state under 
federal law and any minerals acquired by the state through purchase, foreclosure, or 
other written conveyance. Mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams which are 
located within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Berthold reservation and Standing 
Rock Indian reservation is controlled by other law and is excepted from this section. 

• 

• 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subdivision e of subsection 3 of section 61-33.1-03 
• of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 
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e. Subsection � of section 61-33-01 and section 47-06-05, which 
provide all accretions are presumed to be above the ordinary high 
water mark and are not sovereign lands. Accreted lands may be 
determined to be within the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel based on clear and convincing evidence. 
Areas of low-lying and flat lands where the ordinary high water mark 
may be impracticable to determine due to inconclusive aerial 
photography or inconclusive vegetation analysis must be presumed to 
be above the ordinary high water mark and owned by the riparian 
landowner." 

Page 3 ,  line 11, replace "acreage determinations were approved" with "payments were made" 

Page 3 ,  after line 26, insert: 

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 61-33.1-07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

61-33.1-07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction. (Retroactive application -
See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state engineer to regulate the 
historical Missouri riverbed channel , minerals other than oil and gas, or the waters of 
the state, provided the regulation does not affect ownership of oil and gas minerals in 
and under the riverbed or lands above the ordinary high water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams. 

SECTION 9. CONTINGENT APPROPRIATION - STRATEGIC INVESTMENT 
AND IMPROVEMENTS FUND - REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL EXPENSES. 

1. There is appropriated out of any moneys held in reserve in the strategic 
investment and improvements fund for mineral title disputes, not otherwise 
appropriated, the sum of $750,000, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, to the commissioner of university and school lands for the 
purpose of reimbursing legal expenses as provided in subsection 2 ,  for the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2021. 

2. The commissioner of university and school lands shall use funds 
appropriated in subsection 1 to reimburse actual legal and expert fees 
incurred and requested by any private mineral owner, or the owner's 
successors in interest, who reserved the mineral rights, through deed or 
condemnation order from the court, when the United States acquired the 
owner's property as part of the land acquisitions for Garrison Dam and its 
reservoir, Lake Sakakawea, and who filed a lawsuit against the state of 
North Dakota after December 31, 2011, but before December 31, 2016, 
and which lawsuit was pending as of February 1, 2017, claiming title to 
reserved mineral rights. The legal and expert fees may not be reimbursed 
until the final adjudication, settlement, or other resolution of the lawsuit for 
which they were incurred. 

SECTION 10. APPLICATION. Sections 1 and 2 of this Act do not apply to the 
ordinary high water mark study required for the historical Missouri riverbed channel in 
chapter 61-33.1. This Act does not affect or limit the authority of the state engineer to 
regulate waters of this state. 
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SECTION 1 1 .  EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Unruh 

April 22, 20 1 9  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B I LL NO. 22 1 1  

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 677- 1 680 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 909- 1 91 1 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bil l No. 221 1  
be amended as fol lows: 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after "enact" insert "section 61 -33-0 1 . 1  and" 

Page 1 ,  line 2, remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  line 3, after "sections" insert "61 -33-0 1 and 61 -33 . 1 -02, subdivision e of subsection 3 of 
section 61 -33. 1 -03, sections" 

Page 1 ,  line 3 ,  replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1 ,  line 3, after "61 -33. 1 -05" insert " ,  and 61 -33. 1 -07" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, after "to" insert "sovereign lands, determining the ordinary high water mark, and" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, replace "inundated" with "subject to inundation" 

Page 1 ,  line 5, after "dams" insert " ;  to provide for application; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  after line 6, insert:  

"SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Section 61 -33-0 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33-01 . Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires: 

1 .  "Board" means the sovereign lands advisory board. 

2. "Board of university and school l ands" means that entity created by section 
1 5-0 1 -0 1 .  

3 .  "Ordinary high water mark" means the continuous line along the banks of 
navigable rivers and lakes where the presence and action of waters of the 
navigable river or lake are so common and usual, and so long continued in 
al l ordinary years, as to mark upon the bank of a navigable river or lake a 
character distinct from that of the abutting upland . "  

4 .  "Sovereign lands" means those areas , including beds and is lands, lying 
within the ordinary high water mark of navigable lakes and streams. Lands 
established to be riparian accretion or reliction lands pursuant to section 
47-06-05 are considered to be above the ordinary high water mark and are 
not sovereign lands . 

4:-� "State engineer" means the person appointed by the state water 
commission pursuant to section 61 -03-0 1 . 
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SECTION 2. Section 61 -33-01 . 1  of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as fol lows: 

61 -33-01 . 1 . Ordinary high water mark determination - Factors to be 
considered. 

The state engineer shal l maintain ordinary h igh water mark del ineation 
guidel ines consistent with th is section . 

.L When determining the ordinary h igh water mark for del ineating the 
boundary of sovereign lands, vegetation and soi ls analysis must be 
considered the primary physical indicators . When considering vegetation, 
the ordinary h igh water mark is the l ine below wh ich the presence and 
action of the water is frequent enough to prevent the growth of terrestrial 
vegetation or restrict vegetation growth to predominately aquatic species.  
General ly, land, including hay land, where the h igh and continuous 
presence of water has destroyed the value of the land for agricultural 
purposes must be deemed within the ordinary h igh water mark . 

.2.,_ Hydrological and hydraul ic measurements from stream gauge data, 
elevation data, ordinary water flow records, h igh resolution l ight detection 
and ranging systems, prior elevation and survey maps, and statistical 
hydrological evidence may be considered when determining the ordinary 
h igh water mark. The state engineer shal l establ ish appropriate guidel ines, 
technical standards, and other criteria, including use of l ight detection and 
ranging systems or other future technological advancements, as 
necessary, for conducting hydrologic and hydraul ic model ing as stated by 
th is section. 

� Secondary physical indicators, including l itter, debris, or staining, may be 
considered to supplement the analysis of the ordinary h igh water mark 
investigation but may not supersede primary physical indicators unless 
primary phys ical indicators are deemed inadequate or inconclusive. 
Physical indicators di rectly affected by influent non-navigable tributaries, 
adjoining water bodies, or wetlands may not be used to del ineate the 
sovereign land boundary of a navigable body of water. 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 61 -33. 1 -02 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33. 1 -02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inu ndation by 
Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovereign land mineral ownership of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams extends only 
to the h istorical Missouri riverbed channel up to the ordinary h igh water mark. The state 
holds no claim or tit le to any minerals above the ordinary h igh water mark of the 
h istorical Missouri riverbed channel inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan 
Missouri basin project dams, except for orig inal grant lands acqui red by the state under 
federal law and any minerals acqui red by the state through purchase, foreclosure, or 
other written conveyance. Mineral ownersh ip of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams wh ich are 
located within the exterior boundaries of the Fort Berthold reservation and Standing 
Rock Indian reservation is control led by other law and is excepted from th is section.  
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SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subdivision e of subsection 3 of section 6 1 -33. 1 -03 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

e. Subsection � of section 6 1 -33-01 and section 47-06-05, which 
provide al l accretions are presumed to be above the ordinary high 
water mark and are not sovereign lands . Accreted lands may be 
determined to be within the ordinary h igh water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel based on clear and convincing evidence. 
Areas of low-ly ing and flat lands where the ordinary high water mark 
may be impracticable to determine due to inconclusive aerial 
photog raphy or inconclusive vegetation analysis must be presumed to 
be above the ordinary high water mark and owned by the riparian 
landowner. " 

Page 3, after l ine 26,  insert: 

"SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 6 1 -33. 1 -07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33. 1 -07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction .  (Retroactive application -
See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state eng ineer to regulate the 
h istorical Missouri riverbed channel ,  minerals other than oi l and gas, or the waters of 
the state, provided the regulation does not affect ownership of oi l and gas minerals in 
and under the riverbed or lands above the ordinary h igh water mark of the historical 
Missouri riverbed channel inundatedoubject to inundation by Pick-Sloan Missouri basin 
project dams . 

SECTION 9. APPLICATION. Sections 1 and 2 of this Act do not apply to the 
ordinary high water mark study requi red for the historical Missouri riverbed channel in 
chapter 6 1 -33. 1 .  This Act does not affect or l imit the authority of the state eng ineer to 
regulate waters of this state. 

SECTION 1 0. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure. "  

Renumber according ly  
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Section 1 3. Each house shall keep a journal of its proceedings, and a recorded vote on 
any quest ion sha l l  be taken at the request of one-sixth of those members present. No b i l l  may 
become law except by a recorded vote of a majority of the members elected to each house, 
and the l ieutenant governor is considered a member-elect of the senate when the l ieutenant 
governor votes. 

No law may be enacted except by a bi l l  passed by both houses, and no bi l l  may be 
amended on its passage through either house i n  a manner wh ich changes its general subject 
matter. No b i l l  may embrace more than one subject, which must be expressed in its title; but a 
law violating th is provision is i nvalid only to the extent the subject is not so expressed. 

Every b i l l  must be read on two separate natural days, and the readings may be by title only 
un less a reading at length is demanded by one-fifth of the members present. 

No b i l l  may be amended, extended, or incorporated i n  any other b i l l  by reference to its title 
on ly, except in the case of defin itions and procedura l  provisions. 

The presiding  officer of each house shal l sign  a l l  b i l ls passed and resolutions adopted by 
the leg islative assembly, and the fact of sign ing shall be entered at once i n  the journal . 

Every law, except as otherwise provided i n  th is section , enacted by the legislative 
assembly dur ing its eighty natural meeting days takes effect on August fi rst after its fi l ing with 
the secretary of state , or if fi led on or after August fi rst and before January first of the fol lowing 
year ninety days after its fi l ing , or on a subsequent date if specified in the law unless, by a vote 
of two-th i rds of the members elected to each house , the leg islative assembly declares it an 
emergency measure and includes the declaration  in the Act. Every appropriation measure for 
support and maintenance of state departments and institutions and every tax measure that 
changes tax rates enacted by the leg is lative assembly take effect on Ju ly fi rst after its fi l ing 
with the secretary of state or on a subsequent date if specified i n  the law un less, by a vote of 
two-th irds of the members elected to each house, the leg islative assembly declares it an 
emergency measure and includes the declaration in the Act. An emergency measure takes 
effect upon its fi l ing with the secretary of state or on  a date specified in the measure. Every law 
enacted by a special session of the legis lative assembly takes effect on a date specified i n  the 
Act. 

The legislative assembly shall enact all laws necessary to carry into effect the provisions of 
this constitution. Except as otherwise provided in this constitution, no local or special laws may 
be enacted, nor may the leg islative assembly i ndi rectly enact special or local laws by the 
partial repeal of a genera l  law but laws repeal ing local or special laws may be enacted. 

Section 1 4. All sessions of the legislative assembly, including the committee of the whole 
and meetings of leg is lative committees, must be open and publ ic .  

Section 1 5. Members of the leg islative assembly are immune from arrest dur ing their 
attendance at the sessions, and in going to or return ing from the sessions, except in cases of 
felony. Members of the leg islative assembly may not be questioned in any other place for any 
words used in any speech or debate in legislative proceedings.  

Section 1 6. Any amendment to th is constitution may be proposed in either house of the 
leg is lative assembly, and if  agreed to upon a rol l  cal l  by a majority of the members elected to 
each house, must be submitted to the electors and if a majority of the votes cast thereon are in 
the affirmative, the amendment is a part of th is constitution. 
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Section 1 6. Any city, county, townsh ip ,  town, school district or any other political 
subdivision incurring indebtedness shall, at or before the time of so doing , provide for the 
collection of an annual tax sufficient to pay the i nterest and also the principal thereof when 
due, and all laws or ordinances providing for the payment of the interest or principal of any 
debt shall be i rrepealable until such debt be paid. 

Section 17 .  No bond or evidence of indebtedness of the state is valid unless it has 
endorsed thereon a certificate, signed by the auditor and secretary of state showing that the 
bond or evidence of debt is issued pursuant to law and is with in the debt limit. No bond or 
evidence of debt of any county, or bond of any township or other political subdivision is  valid 
unless it has endorsed thereon a certificate signed by the officer authorized by law to sign such 
certificate , stating that said bond or evidence of debt is issued pursuant to law and is with in the 
debt limit. 

Section 1 8. The state, any county or city may make internal improvements and may 
engage in any industry, enterprise or business, not prohibited by a rticle XX of the constitution, 
but neither the state nor any political subdivision thereof shall otherwise loan or g ive its credit 
or make donations to or in aid of any individual , association or corporation except for 
reasonable support of the poor, nor subscribe to or become the owner of capital stock in any 
associat ion or corporation. 

Section 1 9. The leg islative assembly is hereby authorized and empowered to p rovide by 
law for the erection , pu rchasing or leasing and operation of one or more terminal grain 
elevators in the states of M innesota or Wisconsin, or both ,  to be maintained and operated in 
such manner as the leg islative assembly shall prescribe, and provide for i nspection, weigh ing 
and grad ing of all g rain received in such elevator or elevators. 

Section 20. The leg islative assembly is hereby authorized and empowered to provide by 
law for the erection , purchasing or leasing and operation of one or more terminal grain 
elevators in the state of North Dakota, to be maintained and operated in such manner as the 
leg islative assembly shall prescribe, and provide for inspection , weighing and g rading of all 
grain received in such elevator or elevators. 

Section 21 . Not less than fifteen percent of the tax imposed for severing coal shall be 
placed into a permanent trust fund in the state treasury to be held in trust and administered by 
the board of univers ity and school lands, wh ich shall have full authority to invest said trust 
funds as provided by law, and may loan moneys from the fund to political subd ivisions as 
provided by law. The interest earned on the moneys in said trust fund shall be used first to 
replace uncollectable loans made from the fund, and the balance shall be cred ited to the 
general fund of the state. Up to fifty percent of the taxes collected and deposited in the 
permanent trust fund during a biennium may be appropriated by the leg islative assembly for 
lignite research , development, and marketing as provided by law. An additional twenty percent 
of the taxes collected and deposited in the permanent trust fund du ring a biennium may be 
appropriated by the legislative assembly for clean coal demonstration projects approved by the 
industrial commission. 

Section 22. The leg islative assembly may provide by law for a percentage of revenue from 
taxes imposed on the extraction or production of oil to be allocated and credited to a special 
trust fund, to be known as the resources trust fund. The principal and income of the resources 
trust fund may be expended only pursuant to legislative appropriation for: 

1. Constructing water-related projects, including rural water systems; and 
2 .  Fund ing of programs for energy conservation. 
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1 9 .0598 .03009 
Title .  

P repared by the Leg is lative Counc i l  staff for 
Representative Keiser 

March 2 1 , 201 9 

PROPOSED AMEN DMENTS TO ENG ROSSED SENATE B I LL NO.  22 1 1  

That the House recede from its amendments as pri nted on pages 1 677- 1 680 of the Senate 
Journal  and pages 1 909- 1 9 1 1 of the House Journal  and that Eng rossed Senate B i l l  No. 22 1 1  
be amended as fol lows : 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  1 ,  after "enact" insert "sect ion 6 1 -33-0 1 . 1  and" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  2 ,  remove "and" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  3 ,  after "sect ions" i nsert " 6 1 -33-0 1 and 6 1 -33 . 1 -02 , subdiv is ion e of subsect ion 3 of 
sect ion 6 1 -33 . 1 -03 , sections" 

Page 1 ,  l ine 3 ,  replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  3 ,  after "6 1 -33 . 1 -05" insert " ,  and 6 1 -33 . 1 -07' ' 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  4 ,  after "to" i nsert "sovere ign lands, determ in i ng  the ord i nary h igh water mark, and"  

Page 1 ,  l i ne  4 ,  rep lace " i nundated" wi th "subject to i nundation"  

Page 1 ,  l i ne  5 ,  after "dams" i nsert " ;  to  provide for appl icat ion ; and to declare an emergency" 

Page 1 ,  afte r l i ne 6 ,  i nsert :  

"SECTION 1 .  AM ENDMENT. Sect ion 6 1 -33-0 1 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33-01 . Definitions.  

As used in  th is  chapter, un less the context otherwise requ i res:  

1 .  "Board" means the sovere ign lands advisory board . 

2 .  "Board of  un iversity and school lands" means that entity created by sect ion 
1 5-0 1 -0 1 . 

3 .  "Ord inary h igh water mark" means that l ine below which the presence and 
action of the water upon the land is  conti nuous enough so as to prevent 
the growth of te rrestr ia l  vegetation, destroy i ts value  for agricu l tural 
pu rposes by prevent ing the growth of what may be termed an ord i nary 
agr icu ltural crop, inc lud ing hay, or  restrict its growth to predominantly 
aquatic species . 

4 .  "Sovere ign lands" means those areas , inc lud ing beds and is lands ,  lyi ng 
with in  the ord inary h igh  water mark of navigable lakes and streams.  Lands 
estab l ished to be r ipar ian accret ion or re l i ct ion lands pursuant to sect ion 
47-06-05 are considered to be above the ord inary h igh wate r mark and are 
not sovere ign lands. 

4:-5 . "State engi neer" means the person appointed by the state water 
commission pursuant to sect ion 6 1 -03-0 1 . 
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SECTION 2. Section 6 1 -33-0 1 . 1  of the North Dakota Centu ry Code is created 
and enacted as fol lows : 

61 -33-01 . 1 . Ordinary high water mark determination - Factors to be 
considered. 

The state engineer shal l ma intai n  ord inary h igh water mark de l i neat ion 
gu ide l i nes consistent with this sect ion . 

.L When determ in i ng the ord inary h igh water mark for de l ineat ing the 
boundary of sovere ign lands, vegetation and so i ls  analys is must be 
cons idered the primary physical ind icators . When consider ing vegetation, 
the ord inary h igh water mark is  the l i ne be low wh ich the presence and 
act ion of the water is frequent enough to prevent the growth of te rrestr ial 
vegetat ion or restrict vegetation growth to predom inately aquatic species . 
Genera l ly, land, inc lud ing hay land, where the h igh and conti nuous 
presence of water has destroyed the value of the land for agricu l tural 
pu rposes must be deemed with in  the ord inary h igh water mark. 

� When feas ib le, d i rect hydrological and hydrau l ic  measurements from 
stream gauge data, e levat ion data, h istoric records of water f low, h igh 
resolut ion l ight detect ion and ranging systems, prior e levat ion and su rvey 
maps, and statist ical hydrological evidence must be considered when 
determ in i ng the ord i nary h igh water mark. The state engineer shal l 
estab l ish appropriate gu ide l i nes, techn ical standards, and other criteria, 
inc lud ing use of l ight detection and ranging systems or other futu re 
technological advancements, as necessary, for conduct ing hydrologic and 
hyd rau l ic  mode l i ng requ i red by th is sect ion . 

3 .  Secondary physical i nd icators, inc lud ing l i tter, debris, or sta in ing, may be 
cons idered to supplement the analys is of the ord inary h igh water mark 
i nvestigat ion but may not supersede primary physical ind icators un less 
primary physical ind icators are deemed inadequate or i nconcl usive . 
Physical i nd icators d i rectly affected by i nf l uent non-navigable tr ibutaries, 
adjo in i ng wate r bod ies, or wetlands may not be used to de l i neate the 
sovere ign land boundary of a navigable body of water. 

SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT. Section 6 1 -33 . 1 -02 of the North Dakota Centu ry 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61-33. 1 -02. Mineral ownership of land inundatedsubject to inundation by 
Pick-Sloan Missouri basin project dams. (Retroactive application - See note) 

The state sovere ign land m ineral ownersh ip of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to i nundation by P ick-Sloan M issour i  bas in project dams extends on ly 
to the h istorical M issouri r iverbed channe l  up to the ord inary h igh water mark. The state 
holds no c la im or t i t le to any m inerals above the ord inary h igh water mark of the 
h istorical M issouri riverbed channel inundatedcubject to i nundation by P ick-Sloan 
M issouri bas in project dams,  except for or ig inal g rant lands acqu i red by the state under 
federal law and any m inerals acqu i red by the state th rough purchase , foreclosure, or 
other  written conveyance . M inera l  ownersh ip of the riverbed segments 
inundatedsubject to i n undation by P ick-S loan Missou ri bas in project dams which are 
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located with i n  the exter ior boundar ies of the Fort Berthold reservation and Stand ing 
• Rock I nd ian reservat ion is contro l led by other law and is excepted from th is sect ion . 
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SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subdiv is ion e of subsection 3 of sect ion 6 1 -33 . 1 -03 
of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows : 

e .  Subsection a1_ of  sect ion 6 1 -33-0 1 and section 47-06-05 , which 
provide al l accret ions are presumed to be above the ord i nary h igh 
water mark and are not sovere ign  lands.  Accreted lands may be 
determined to be with i n  the ord inary high water mark of the h istorical 
M issouri riverbed channel  based on clear and conv inc ing evidence. 
Areas of low-ly i ng and f lat lands where the ord i nary h igh water mark 
may be impracticab le to determ ine  due to i nconc lusive aerial 
photography or i nconclus ive vegetation analys is m ust be presumed to 
be above the ord inary high water mark and owned by the r ipar ian 
landowner. " 

Page 3 ,  afte r l i ne  26 ,  i nsert :  

" SECTION 8 .  AM ENDMENT. Sect ion 6 1 -33 . 1 -07 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

61 -33 . 1 -07. State engineer regulatory jurisdiction .  (Retroactive application -
See note) 

This chapter does not affect the authority of the state eng ineer  to regu late the 
h istorical M issour i  riverbed channe l ,  m inerals other  than o i l  and gas , or the wate rs of 
the state , p rovided the regu lat ion does not affect ownersh ip  of o i l  and gas m inerals i n  
and  under t he  riverbed o r  lands above the ord inary h i gh  water mark of the h istor ical 
M issouri r iverbed channel inundatedsubject to i nundation by P ick-Sloan M issour i  bas in  
project dams . 

SECTION 9. APPLICATION. Sect ions 1 and 2 of th is Act do not apply to the 
ord inary high water mark study requ i red for the h istorical M issour i  r iverbed channe l  in 
chapter 6 1 -33 . 1 . Th is Act does not affect or l im it the authority of the state eng ineer  to 
regu late waters of th is state . 

SECTION 1 0. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency 
measure . "  

Renumber  accord ing ly  
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